Public Document Pack

Licensing
Committee

Mon 5 Mar
2018
7.00 pm

REDDITCH BOROUGH CQUTCL
2

Committee Room Two
Town Hall
Redditch




If you have any queries on this Agenda please contact
Sarah Sellers

Town Hall, Walter Stranz Square, Redditch, B98 8AH
Tel: (01527) 64252 ext 2884
e.mail: sarah.sellers@bromsqgroveandredditch.gov.uk



mailto:sarah.sellers@bromsgrove

REDDITGH BOR0UGH COUNCIL
—_— '

LlcenS"‘g Monday, 5th March, 2018
COMMITTEE 7.00 pm
Committee Room 2 Town Hall
Agenda Membership:

Cllrs: Pat Witherspoon (Chair) Pattie Hill

Andrew Fry (Vice-Chair) Gay Hopkins

Tom Baker-Price Antonia Pulsford

Roger Bennett Rachael Smith

Natalie Brookes Jennifer Wheeler

Anita Clayton

1. Apologies

2. Declarations of Interest
To invite Councillors to declare any Disclosable Pecuniary Interests and / or Other

Disclosable Interests they may have in items on the agenda, and to confirm the nature of
those interests.

3. Minutes (Pages 1-8)

To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the Licensing Committee held on 6" November
2017.

4, Gambling Act 2005 - Review of Statement of Principles (Pages 9 - 48)

5. Further consideration of recent amendments to Hackney Carriage and Private Hire
Driver Licensing Policy (Pages 49 - 78)

0. Update on implementation of recommendations from "Improving Disabled People's
Access to Redditch Taxi Fleet" Task Group (Pages 79 - 84)

{. Work Programme (Pages 85 - 86)



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 Agenda Item 3

REDDITGH B0R0UGH COUNCIL
—— > 2
Licensing
M.reddilchbc.gov_uk Comm|ttee Monday, 6 November 2017

M|NUTES Present:

Councillor Pat Witherspoon (Chair), Councillor Andrew Fry (Vice-Chair)
and Councillors Tom Baker-Price, Roger Bennett, Natalie Brookes,
Anita Clayton, Pattie Hill, Antonia Pulsford and Jennifer Wheeler

Also Present:

Jill Action — Young Solutions Worcestershire (for Minute No.11)
Debbie Roberts — Young Solutions Worcestershire (for Minute No.11)
Detective Inspector Mark Roberts — Worcestershire Vulnerability, West
Mercia Police (for Minute No.11)

(A taxi driver was also present for the first part of the meeting)
Officers:

Timothy Bishop and Dave Etheridge

Democratic Services Officer:

Debbie Parker-Jones

8. APOLOGIES

An apology for absence was received from Councillor Gay Hopkins.
9. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.
10. MINUTES

RESOLVED that

the minutes of the meeting of the Licensing Committee held on

17th July 2017 be confirmed as a correct record and signed by
the Chair.



Licensing

Committee

Page 2 Agenda Item 3

Monday, 6 November 2017

11.

CHILD SEXUAL EXPLOITATION TRAINING - VERBAL UPDATE

The Senior Practitioner (Licensing) (‘SPL’), Worcestershire
Regulatory Services (WRS), introduced this item and reminded
Members that the issue of Child Exploitation had previously been
discussed by the Committee, with leaflets on this having been
circulated to taxi drivers 2 years prior.

WRS were working in partnership with West Mercia Police and
Young Solutions Worcestershire ('YSW’) on child exploitation
matters. Detective Inspector Mark Roberts of Worcestershire
Vulnerability, West Mercia Police, and Ms Jill Action and Ms Debbie
Roberts of YSG, were in attendance at the meeting to provide
Members with a verbal update on the Child Sexual Exploitation
training which was being rolled out across the county.

Ms Roberts spoke on the training which YSG, a Worcester based
charity, would be running on behalf of the Police and Crime
Commissioner (PCC). The training would be tailored to add value
to existing initiatives which were in place, and would extend to taxi
drivers, hotels, bed and breakfast establishments and staff working
in the night-time economy. In light of the large number of taxi
drivers in Redditch, training would begin at the Town Hall in
Redditch in January 2018, and would be rolled out to the other
districts thereafter.

The training, which would not be mandatory in Worcestershire
(initially at least), would last an hour and be delivered face-to-face.
Taxi drivers were the eyes and ears of the community and the
training would define child sexual exploitation, explain the legal
aspects of this, and outline scenarios for drivers. A certificate of
attendance would be given to drivers who completed the training.
Drivers could work in partnership with the authorities for the
protection of the community and the training would also help protect
drivers. Detective Inspector Roberts stated that it was important for
the Police to work collaboratively with partners to tackle child sexual
exploitation in the county.

The SPL stated that WRS would look to encourage drivers to attend
the training and would monitor attendance at this. Should
attendance be low Officers might look to bring a report back to the
Committee on this, which could result in training being made
mandatory, which could ultimately result in a cost implication for
drivers should the PCC not fund this in the future. Drivers would
therefore be encouraged to attend the training whilst this was free.

Members thanks the SPL, Detective Inspector Roberts, Ms Action
and Ms Roberts for the update and welcomed the Child Sexual
Exploitation training.



Licensing
Committee
12.
13.

Page 3 Agenda Item 3

Monday, 6 November 2017

APPROVAL OF THE REVISED HACKNEY CARRIAGE AND
PRIVATE HIRE POLICIES

The Licensing Committee was asked to consider a report which set
out revisions to the Council’s Hackney Carriage and Private Hire
Vehicle and Driver Policies. This followed decisions taken at the
last meeting of the Committee in response to the Overview and

Scrutiny Committee’s “Improving Access for People with Disabilities
to Redditch Taxi Fleets” Short, Sharp Review.

The Senior Practitioner (Licensing), Worcestershire Regulatory
Services, presented the report and explained the proposed
amendments, which would take effect from 1st December 2017.

The Driver Licensing Policy contained changes in relation to holders
of driver licences having to undertake refresher training in disability

awareness, and the requirement to pass a Driving Assessment test

with Worcestershire County Council at least every three years.

The Hackney Carriage Licensing Policy included a change where
applications for additional licences for Hackney Carriages would be
granted only to approved vehicles which were less than 6 years old
(72 months), which met European “M1” safety standards, and which
had facilities for carrying a disabled person in a wheelchair within
the vehicle.

A member queried whether applicants for licences had to be over
21 years of age throughout the county, which Officers agreed to
check and advise Members on.

RESOLVED that

1) therevised Driver Licensing Policy at Appendix 1 to the
report be approved and take effect on 1st December 2017;
and

2) therevised Hackney Carriage Licensing Policy at
Appendix 2 to the report be approved and take effect on
1st December 2017.

DRAFT REVISED STREET TRADING POLICY

The Licensing Committee was asked to consider a report which
presented a draft revised Street Trading Policy (‘the Policy’), for the
purpose of consultation with relevant parties. It was noted that the
current policy had been in place since July 2012, with it being
considered best practice for a Council to adopt such a policy to
encourage consistency and transparency in the way that its



Licensing

Committee

Page 4 Agenda Item 3

Monday, 6 November 2017

14.

functions were carried out, and to review any adopted policy from
time to time.

The Senior Practitioner (Licensing) (‘SPL’), Worcestershire
Regulatory Services (‘WRS’), explained the key changes in the
revised Policy. Members were advised that this was more
comprehensive than the existing Policy and also brought together
various related documentation.

The new Policy was based on a template which WRS were looking
to introduce across the whole of the county. Whilst there would no
doubt still be some specifics for individual authorities it was hoped
that this would allow for certain consistencies across the board,
which would be helpful to Officers.

The SPL responded to Members’ questions and highlighted the Key
Considerations when granting or renewing a Street Trading
Consent detailed in the report, with road safety being a primary
issue. It was hoped that the new Policy would be sufficiently robust
to ensure that no inappropriate applications were granted.

A Member queried the position in relation to street trading where
premises used the adjoining street/pavement to display goods, and
whether this might be deemed as causing an ‘obstruction’ with the
police/highways, and if any issues with this would be picked up as
part of the planning process. The Legal Advisor present stated that
the position could be looked into and the SPL stated that he
understood there to be legislation which addressed this.

Members approved the Policy for the purpose of consultation, and
in doing requested that any relevant child employment agencies
also be consulted on this.

RESOLVED that

the draft revised Street Trading Policy at Appendix 2 to the
report be approved for the purpose of consultation with
relevant parties.

STREET TRADING - DESIGNATION OF STREETS

Further to the previous agenda item which asked the Licensing
Committee to approve consultation on a draft revised Street Trading
Policy, the Committee was also asked to give approval to the
advertisement of a proposal to designate all streets in the Borough
as ‘consent streets’ (streets in which street trading was prohibited
without the consent of the Borough Council), for the purposes of
controlling street trading.



Licensing
Committee

Page 5 Agenda Item 3

Monday, 6 November 2017

The Senior Practitioner (Licensing) (‘SPL’), Worcestershire
Regulatory Services, advised that he appreciated there were
arguments on both sides of the divide. In response to Members’
guestions he confirmed that no complaints had been received in
relation to streets which were currently designated as prohibited.
Members were advised what their involvement would be in the
process should all streets be designated as consent streets.

The rationale behind Officers’ request to designate all streets in the
Borough as consent streets and remove any prohibited streets (a
street in which street trading is prohibited), was that this would allow
every application to be considered on its merits and would enable
street trading permitted in what were currently prohibited streets,
where this was felt appropriate. This could be, for example, to
facilitate a short-term community event or other similar event where
the ability to allow street trading would enhance the event and
provide a benefit to the wider community. Additionally, Officers felt
that the draft revised Street Trading Policy would, if adopted, put in
place a robust framework for consultation and consideration of all
applications received on their own merits. Therefore the need to
designate any street as prohibited streets would be diminished.

During the course of the debate on this Members expressed varying
viewpoints. In response to Members’ concerns the SPL made clear
that there would still be the ability, in appropriate circumstances, for
a consent which had been given to be referred to the Committee for
consideration, which the Committee could revoke should there be
genuine reason(s) for this. Members noted that as only
approximately 5 licences had been granted under the Street
Trading Policy (which did not include market traders, which were
separate) there was capacity for the Committee to deal with any
issues should these arise.

The SPL set out the broad approach behind recommendation 2.1 of
the report, and how this would work. Members felt that Officers
should first consult on the Council’s intention to rescind all existing
designations of streets under Schedule 4 of the Local Government
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982, rather than publishing its
intention to do so. Any relevant responses received to the
consultation on this, which would link in with the consultation on the
Street Trading Policy discussed under the previous agenda item,
could then be considered by the Committee, as necessary.

RESOLVED that

Officers be authorised to consult with relevant parties on the
Council’s intention to pass resolutions which would take effect
on 1st September 2018 and which would rescind all existing
designations of streets under Schedule 4 of the Local



Licensing

Committee

Page 6 Agenda Item 3

Monday, 6 November 2017

15.

Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982, and
designate all streets in the Borough (as existing at the time of
the making of the resolution and in the future) as consent
streets.

FURTHER CONSIDERATION OF A PENALTY POINT SCHEME
FOR HACKNEY CARRIAGE AND PRIVATE HIRE LICENCE
HOLDERS

The Licensing Committee was asked to give further consideration to
implementing a penalty points scheme for hackney carriage and
private hire licence holders to help deal with minor offences and
acts of non-compliance with licensing requirements.

The Senior Practitioner (Licensing) (‘SPL’), Worcestershire
Regulatory Services (‘WRS’), reminded Members that during 2016
the Council carried out a consultation on introducing a penalty
points scheme. The consultation results had been considered by
the Committee in July 2016, at which point it was decided to defer
the implementation of a penalty points scheme to allow the
Redditch Taxi Association to undertake a period of self-regulation to
see if this could achieve the aims of the penalty points scheme by
improving compliance with licensing requirements.

In March 2017 the Committee considered an update report on this
matter and were provided with an overview of the complaints
received about hackney carriage and private hire vehicles during
the periods 1st February 2016 to 31st July 2016 and 1st August
2016 to 31st January 2017. As the figures had shown a reduction
in the number of complaints received it was agreed that WRS
should continue to monitor the number of complaints received to
see if these continued to reduce.

Members were now asked to consider a summary of the complaints
received about hackney carriage and private hire vehicles,
operators and drivers during the period 1st February 2017 and 31st
July 2017.

It was noted that there had been an increase in the number of
complaints during the six month period. Some of the complaints
were about matters covered by the proposed penalty points
scheme, whilst others were not covered by this. The SPL advised
that there were a lot of poor driving complaints throughout the
county, which the penalty points scheme would not address. Other
complaints fell within the bracket of criminal offences, which the
police would address. He added that in the context of taxi driver
numbers it was only a very small minority of drivers who were giving
the trade a bad name, with it being those drivers who were the main



Licensing

Committee

Page 7 Agenda Item 3

Monday, 6 November 2017

16.

offenders and which the proposed penalty points scheme would aim
to address.

Members were disappointed to see that complaint numbers had
increased and felt that the introduction of a penalty points scheme
would provide greater protection for the public. They were also
disappointed to see that nobody from the Redditch Taxi Association
was present to hear the discussion on this item. Members also
wished to see greater communication in the media regarding what
actions the Council was taking to address such issues.

A Member raised the issue of the “fit and proper person” test for
drivers, which the SPL advised would still apply. Drivers would
continue to be called before Members where offences were of a
sufficiently serious nature, with the general threshold for referral of
penalty points to Members under the proposed scheme being 12
points over a rolling 2-year period.

RESOLVED that

Officers be directed to take steps to implement a penalty
points scheme for hackney carriage and private hire licence
holders.

LICENSING COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME

The Committee considered its Work Programme for the remainder
of the 2017/18 Municipal Year.

In relation to the Redditch Taxi Association (‘the Association’) issue
raised under the previous agenda item, a Member queried whether
this might be assisted by the introduction of a ‘public participation’
section at the start of Committee meetings, which it was noted
would require a constitutional change. The Chair stated that the
Committee could think about this in the future if necessary, and that
having worked hard to reinstate the Association it was hoped there
would be more engagement with them following the meeting that
evening. The Senior Practitioner (Licensing) (‘SPL’), Worcestershire
Regulatory Services), stated that Officers would do as much as
possible to communicate the introduction of the penalty points
scheme to drivers and the Association.

The Legal Advisor updated Members on the position with the taxi
rank sign at the bus station in the centre of town, which had not
been working for some time. Officers had persuaded the County
Council Highways Department that the sign was their responsibility,
and Highways had advised him that they were currently looking into
funding to make the necessary repairs to this. It was agreed that



Page 8 Agenda Item 3

Licensing
Committee

Monday, 6 November 2017

Councillor Bennett, as a county councillor, would pursue with matter
with them.

Councillor Bennett went on to raise the issue of ex-London
wheelchair accessible cabs which were less than 6 years old which
were currently on sale on eBay for reasonable prices. The SPL
agreed to include an update on the position with wheelchair
accessible vehicles on the Work Programme for a future meeting.

RESOLVED that

the Licensing Committee Work Programme 2017/2018, and the
additional updates detailed in the preamble above, be noted.

The Meeting commenced at 7.03 pm
and closed at 8.35 pm




Page 9 Agenda ltem 4

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

LICENSING COMMITTEE 5" March 2018

GAMBLING ACT 2005 — REVIEW OF STATEMENT OF PRINCIPLES

Relevant Portfolio Holder Councillor Joe Baker

Portfolio Holder Consulted Yes

Relevant Head of Service Simon Wilkes - Head of
Worcestershire Regulatory Services

Wards Affected All Wards

Ward Councillor Consulted N/A

Non-Key Decision

1. SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS

The Council’s current Statement of Principles under the Gambling Act
2005 took effect on 31 January 2016. In accordance with the
provisions of the Act, the Council is required to prepare and publish a
Statement of Principles every three years. Therefore a new Statement
of Principles must be published in time to take effect on 31% January
2019.

As part of the process of preparing a Statement of Principles for the
three year period beginning on 31° January 2019, the Licensing
Committee are now asked to approve a draft revised Statement of
Principles for the purpose of consultation with relevant parties.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

Members are asked to RESOLVE;

To approve the revised draft Statement of Principles shown at
Appendix 1 for the purpose of consultation with relevant parties.

3. KEY ISSUES

Financial Implications

3.1  The costs involved in carrying out the consultation would be met from
existing budgets held by Worcestershire Regulatory Services.

Legal Implications

3.2  Section 349 of the Gambling Act 2005 requires that the licensing
authority produce, consult on and publish a Statement of the Principles
that it proposes to apply when exercising its functions under the Act.



Page 10 Agenda Item 4

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

LICENSING COMMITTEE 5" March 2018

3.3 The Act also requires that the Statement of Principles should be kept
under review and must be re-published at least every three years.

3.4  When revising its Statement of Principles, the Council is required to
consult with:-

¢ the Chief Officer of Police for the Authority’s area;

e 0One or more persons who appear to the Authority to represent
the interests of persons carrying on gambling businesses in the
Authority’s area; and

e 0One or more persons who appear to the Authority to represent
the interests of persons who are likely to be affected by the
exercise of the Authority’s functions under this Act.

Service / Operational Implications

3.5 Redditch Borough Council is a licensing authority in accordance with
the provision of the Gambling Act 2005.

3.6  Each licensing authority is required before each successive three year
period, to prepare and publish a statement of the principles that they
propose to apply in exercising their functions under the Act during that
period. This document is commonly referred to as the authority’s
Statement of Principles.

3.7 The Council’s current Statement of Principles took effect on 31%
January 2016 and therefore a new Statement of Principles must now
be prepared and published ready to take effect on 31%' January 20109.

3.8  Whilst there have been no significant amendments to the provisions of
the Gambling Act 2005 itself since the last Statement of Principles took
effect, there have been changes made to the Gambling Commission’s
Licence Conditions and Codes of Practice (LCCP) that licensed
operators have to comply with. The Gambling Commission has also
updated its Guidance to Licensing Authorities (GLA).

3.9 These changes have been taken into account by officers when
preparing the draft Statement of Principles that can be seen at
Appendix 1.

3.10 Officers also considered that the Statement of Principles needed to be
enhanced with more comprehensive information included on how the
Council will approach its role and responsibilities in relation to the
various permits and small society lotteries that it is responsible for
administering and monitoring.



Page 11 Agenda Item 4

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

LICENSING COMMITTEE 5" March 2018

3.11 The amendments that have been made in the draft Statement of
Principles are shown by way of “track changes” within the document at
Appendix 1 and the more significant changes that have been made
are also summarised below.

3.12 A new section has been included that provides information on the
Gambling Commission and its responsibilities.

3.13 The draft Statement has been updated to reflect the fact that when it is
published in January 2019, a Local Area Profile will have been finalised
and will be available for gambling operators to have regard to when
completing their own local risk assessments.

3.14 The draft Statement now includes a section recognising the links
between Public Health and gambling-related harms and how the
Council would like to work together in partnership with the local Public
Health team to try and better understand and address gambling-related
harms in the area.

3.15 The draft Statement now includes sections that set out in much more
detail how the Council will approach its functions under the Act in
relation to gambling activities in clubs and alcohol licensed premises.

3.16 The draft Statement now includes sections that set out how the Council
will approach its role in relation to the issuing and monitoring of
Unlicensed Family Entertainment Centre Permits and Prize Gaming
Permits.

3.17 The draft Statement also now includes a greatly expanded section on
lotteries and how the Council will approach is role and responsibilities
in relation to the registration and monitoring of Small Society Lotteries.

3.18 Consultation on the revised draft Statement of Principles will take place
with all relevant parties including:

The Chief Officer of West Mercia Police

The Gambling Commission

All other responsible authorities identified under the Act
Relevant Trade Associations

Public Health

Organisations working with people who are problem gamblers
Parish Councils

The general public



Page 12 Agenda Item 4

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

LICENSING COMMITTEE 5" March 2018

3.19 The consultation will also be made available for comment via the
Council’s website and publicised via social media and also through the
local press. Given the number of changes being proposed to the
Council’s existing Statement of Principles, it is proposed that
consultation take place over a period of around 10 — 12 weeks.

3.20 Any responses received during the consultation exercise will be
reported back to the Licensing Committee later this year.

4. RISK MANAGEMENT

4.1  Failing to prepare and publish a new Statement of Principles by 31
January 2019 would leave the Council in a position where it was failing
to comply with its duties as a licensing authority under the provisions of
the Gambling Act 2005.

5. APPENDICES

Appendix 1 — Draft Revised Statement of Principles

AUTHOR OF REPORT

Name: Dave Etheridge — Senior Practitioner (Licensing)
Worcestershire Regulatory Services

E Mail: dave.etheridge@worcsregservices.gov.uk

Tel: (01905) 822799


mailto:dave.etheridge@worcsregservices.gov.uk

Page 13 Agenda ltem 4

REDDITGH B0R0UGH COUNCIL

www.redditchbe.gov.uk

Town Hall, Walter Stranz Square, Redditch, B98 8AH
Phone: 01905 822799 Email: wrsenquiries@worcsregservices.gov.uk

Gambling Act 2005
Statement of Principles

2019-2022

Page 1 of 35



Page 14 Agenda ltem 4

Contents Page
Introduction 3
Gambling Act 2005 4
The Gambling Commission 4
Local Area Profile 5
Authorised Activities 5
General Statement of Principles 6
Preventing gambling from being a source of crime and disorder 7
Ensuring gambling is conducted in a fair and open way 7
Protecting children and vulnerable people from gambling 7
Public Health and Gambling 8
Local Risk Assessments 9
Premises licences 11
Responsible Authorities 12
Interested Parties 13
Licence conditions 14
Gaming Machines 14
Gambling in Alcohol Licensed Premises 15
Gambling in Clubs 18
Unlicensed Family Entertainment Centre Permits 21
Prize Gaming Permits 23
Temporary Use Notices 25
Occasional Use Notices 25
Lotteries 26
Exchange of Information 30
Enforcement 31
Reviews 32
Appendix A — Map of the Borough of Redditch 34
Appendix B — List of Consultees 35

Page 2 of 35




Page 15 Agenda Item 4

Statement of Principles — Gambling Act 2005

1.0
11

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

Introduction

Redditch Borough Council is situated in the County of Worcestershire, which contains 6
District Councils in total. The Borough is approximately 15 miles south of Birmingham. The
Council area has a population of 84,300 (2011 Census) and covers an area of around 21
square miles making it the smallest in the County in terms of population and area. The
population of the Borough has a higher percentage of young people (0 — 15) compared with
the rest of the County. There is a very diverse population within the Borough and there are
four areas that are within the top 10% most deprived in England.

The Borough of Redditch consists of 2 distinct areas:-

e An essentially urban area, which includes a vibrant and thriving town centre and
smaller centres within local districts; and

e An essentially rural area, which includes Astwood Bank, Feckenham, Elcocks Brook
and Ham Green.

The Borough and its address districts are shown in the map at Appendix ‘A’.

Redditch Borough Council is committed to providing residents with effective and efficient
services that not only meet their needs but understand them too. Through considering what
really matters to residents the Council has produced a set of six strategic purposes to guide
us; they are based on customer demands and data and evidence about the needs of and
issues affecting the people of Redditch Borough. The six strategic purposes are set out in
the Council Plan. This statement accerds-with-that-vision seeks to support the strategic
purposes and ir-seeking-to promote the licensing objectives set out in the Act, which are
central to the regulatory regime created by the Act. These are:

e Preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, being associated with
crime or disorder or being used to support crime;

e Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way, and

e Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by
gambling.

The Licensing Authority has produced this statement as required by Section 349 of the
Gambling Act 2005 (referred to in this statement as “the Act”) and having had regard to the
Gambling Commission’s formal guidance issued under Section 25 of the Act, the licensing
objectives and to the views of those that the Licensing Authority have consulted. The
Licensing Authority consulted widely upon this statement before finalising and publishing.
The list of those persons and organisations consulted is appended shown at Appendix B.
The consultation took place between July-and-Octeber 2015 [DATES TO BE INSERTED] in
line with current published Government consultation principles. The statement was
approved at a meeting of the Full Council on 7" December2015 [DATE TO BE
INSERTED]. Should you have any comments with regards to this policy statement please
send them via email or letter to: wrsenquiries@worcsregservices.gov.uk.

This statement must be published at least every three years. The statement may also be
reviewed from ‘time to time’ and any amended parts re-consulted upon.

Page 3 of 35


mailto:wrsenquiries@worcsregservices.gov.uk

1.7

1.8

2.0
2.1

2.2

2.3

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

Page 16 Agenda Item 4

The Licensing Authority intends that this document should provide information and
guidance on the general approach that the Licensing Authority will take to licensing. A
series of advice sheets with more specific guidance is available on request; advice tailored
to individuals is available by phone or to personal callers.

Nothing in this statement takes away the right of any person to make an application under
the Act and to have that application considered on its merits; nor does it undermine the right
of any person to object to an application or to seek a review of a licence where the law
provides that they may do so. Applications will be considered in line with our statement of
general principles, below.

Gambling Act 2005

This statement reflects and aims to support our strategic purposes, as set out in the Council
Plan.

The Act provides for gambling to be authorised in a number of different ways. Our main
functions are to:

e licence premises for gambling activities, including the issue of provisional statements;

e regulate and grant permits for gambling and gaming machines in clubs, including
commercial clubs,

e regulate gaming and gaming machines in alcohol licensed premises;

grant permits to family entertainment centres for the use of certain lower stake gaming

machines;

grant permits for prize gaming;

receive and endorse notices given for the temporary use notices;

receive occasional use notices for betting at tracks;

register small societies lotteries;

maintain public registers; and

provide information to the Gambling Commission on issued licences.

The Gambling Commission regulates remote gambling and issues personal and operating
licences for premises. The “National Lottery” is also regulated by the Gambling
Commission. Spread betting is regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority.

The Gambling Commission

The Gambling Commission regulates gambling in the public interest. It does so by keeping
crime out of gambling; by ensuring that gambling is conducted fairly and openly; and by
protecting children and vulnerable people.

The Commission provides independent advice to the Government about the manner in
which gambling is carried out, the effects of gambling, and the regulation of gambling
generally. It also produces guidance under Section 25 of the Act detailing how local
authorities should exercise their licensing functions.

In addition, the Commission’s role is to issue codes of practice under Section 24 of the Act
about the manner in which facilities for gambling are provided, and how those provisions
might be advertised.

Information about the Gambling Commission can be found on the Internet at:
www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk or by phone: 0121 230 6666.

Page 4 of 35


http://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

5.1

Page 17 Agenda ltem 4

Local Area Profile

Alongside its Statement of Principles, the Licensing Authority weuld-ike-te-werk has worked
with the other Licensing Authorities in Worcestershire and other partners during-the-lifetime
of-this-Statement to develop a “Local Area Profile” for the County as a means of mapping
out local areas of concern, which can be reviewed and updated to reflect changes to the
local landscape.

This Local Area Profile is-likehyto-take takes account of a wide range of factors, data and
information held by the Licensing Authority and its partners. An important element of
preparing the Local Area Profile will-be has been proactive engagement with responsible
authorities as well as other organisations in the area that ean could give input to ‘map’ local
risks in the area.

These are-likely-te include public health, mental health, housing, education, community
welfare groups and safety partnerships, and organisations such as GamCare or equivalent
local organisations.

The aim of the Local Area Profile will-be is to increase awareness of local risks and
improve information sharing, to facilitate constructive engagement with licensees and a
more coordinated response to local risks. The Local Area Profile will also help to inform
specific risks that operators will need to address in their own risk assessments, which wit
forms a part of any new licence application, or aa any application made to vary a licence.

Onece-atLocalAreaProfile-has-been-developedt-willbe- The Local Area Profile is

published on the Licensing Authority’s website and will be updated on a regular basis to

reflect changes to the local environment. Holder’s of premises licences will be notified

whenever the Local Area Profile is updated.

Authorised Activities

‘Gambling’ is defined in the Act as gaming, betting, or taking part in a lottery.

e ‘Gaming’ means playing a game of chance for a prize.

e Betting means making or accepting a bet on the outcome of a race, competition, or any
other event; the likelihood of anything occurring or not occurring; or whether anything is
true or not.

e Alottery is an arrangement where persons are required to pay in order to take part in an

arrangement whereby one or more prizes are allocated by a process which relies wholly
on chance.

Page 5 of 35



6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

Page 18 Agenda Item 4

General Statement of Principles

In carrying out the licensing functions in accordance with the Act, particularly with regard to
premises licences, the Licensing Authority will aim to permit the use of premises for
gambling as long as it is considered to be:

e in accordance with any relevant Codes of Practice issued by the Gambling Commission;
e in accordance with any relevant Guidance issued by the Gambling Commission,;

e in accordance with this Statement of Principles; and

e reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives.

The Licensing Authority will not seek to use the Act to resolve matters that are better dealt
with by other legislation. Licensing is not the primary mechanism for general control of
nuisance and the antisocial behaviour of people once they are away from licensed
premises.

The Licensing Authority will ensure that in dealing with applications under the Act the
Licensing Authority will follow the required procedures and only take into account issues
that are relevant. Specifically, the Licensing Authority will not have regard to “demand”
when considering applications for gambling premises; nor will the Licensing Authority
consider the suitability of applicants for premises licences (which is a matter for the
Gambling Commission). The Licensing Authority will not reject an application on moral
grounds. If the Licensing Authority does decide to reject an application, the Licensing
Authority will make known the reasons for doing so.

The Council has delegated its licensing function to its Licensing Sub-Committee and
Licensing Officers. In the remainder of this Statement of Principles they are referred to
collectively as the ‘Licensing Authority’.

Where an application is for a new premises licence, the responsible authorities will usually
visit to check that gambling facilities meet all necessary legal requirements.

Where there are no representations (objections), licences and permissions will be granted
subject only to any appropriate mandatory conditions (Section 167 of the Act) and any
conditions having at least the effect of appropriate default conditions made under
Section168.

If there are objections that cannot be resolved informally, or the Licensing Authority intends
to impose extra conditions, the Licensing Authority will hold a public hearing at which the
Licensing Sub-Committee will hear evidence and make a decision in accordance with the
Act.

This Statement is not intended to override the right of any person to make an application
under the Act, and to have that application considered on its merits. Equally, this Statement
of Principles is not intended to undermine the right of any person to make representations
about an application or to seek a review of a licence where provision has been made for
them to do so.

Page 6 of 35



7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

8.1

8.2

9.1

Page 19 Agenda Item 4

Preventing Gambling from being a Source of Crime and Disorder

The Gambling Commission takes the leading role in preventing gambling from being a
source of crime, and maintains rigorous licensing procedures aiming to prevent criminals
from providing facilities for gambling. Applicants need an operating licence from the
Commission before the Licensing Authority will issue a licence to use premises for
gambling.

The Licensing Authority will not issue a premises licence to someone who does not hold an
operator’s licence, and would not generally be concerned with the suitability of an applicant.
Where concerns about a person’s suitability arise the Licensing Authority will bring those
concerns to the attention of the Commission.

If an application for a licence or permit is received in relation to premises which are in an
area noted for particular problems with organised crime, the Licensing Authority will, in
consultation with the Police and other relevant authorities, consider whether specific
controls need to be applied to prevent those premises from being a source of crime. This
could include a requirement for door supervisors registered by the Security Industries
Association.

‘Disorder’ is generally a matter for the Police; the Licensing Authority will not use this Act to
deal with general nuisance issues, for example, parking problems, which can be better
dealt with using alternative powers. Disorder will only be considered under this Act if it
amounts to activity which is more serious and disruptive than mere nuisance, and where it
can be shown that gambling is the source of that disorder. A disturbance might be serious
enough to constitute disorder if Police assistance were required to deal with it; the
Licensing Authority will then consider how threatening the behaviour was to those who
could see or hear it, and whether those people live sufficiently close to be affected or have
business interests that might be affected.

When making decisions relating to disorder, the Licensing Authority will give due weight to
comments made by the Police.

Ensuring Gambling is conducted in a Fair and Open Way

The Gambling Commission does not expect local authorities to become concerned with
ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way. The Commission, through the
operating and personal licensing regime, will regulate the management of the gambling
business and the suitability and actions of an individual.

As betting track operators do not need an operating licence from the Commission, the
Licensing Authority may, in certain circumstances, require conditions of licence relating to
the suitability of the environment in which betting takes place.

Protecting children and vulnerable people from being harmed or exploited by
gambling

The intention of the Act is that children and young persons should not be allowed to
gamble, and should be prevented from entering those gambling premises which are ‘adult-
only’ environments.

Page 7 of 35



9.2

9.3

9.4

9.5

9.6

9.7

9.8

10.

10.1

10.2

Page 20 Agenda Item 4

Codes of Practice — including advice about access by children and young persons — may be
published by the Gambling Commission for specific kinds of premises. Applicants are
expected to heed this advice where applicable.

The Licensing Authority expects steps to be taken to prevent children from taking part in, or
being in close proximity to, gambling. This may include restrictions on advertising to ensure
that gambling products are not aimed at children, nor advertised in such a way that makes
them particularly attractive to children.

When determining a premises licence or permit the Licensing Authority will consider
whether any additional measures are necessary to protect children, such as the supervision
of entrances, the segregation of gambling from areas frequented by children and the
supervision of gaming machines in non-adult gambling specific premises like pubs, clubs
and betting tracks.

In seeking to protect vulnerable people the Licensing Authority will include people who
gamble more than they want to, people who gamble beyond their means, and people who
may not be able to make informed or balanced decisions about gambling, perhaps due to a
mental impairment, alcohol or drugs.

The Licensing Authority will always treat each case on its individual merits and when
considering whether specific measures are required to protect children and other vulnerable
people, will balance these considerations against the overall principle of aiming to permit
the use of premises for gambling.

The Licensing Authority is required by regulations to state the principles it will apply in
exercising its powers under Section 157(h) of the Act to designate, in writing, a body which
is competent to advise the authority about the protection of children from harm.

These principles are:

e The need for the body to be responsible for an area covering the whole of the Licensing
Authority’s area.

e The need for the body to be answerable to democratically elected persons, rather than
any particular vested interest group.

In accordance with the suggestion in the Gambling Commission’s Guidance for local
authorities, this authority designates the Worcestershire Safeguarding Children Board for
this purpose.

Public Health and Gambling

The Licensing Authority agrees with the Gambling Commission’s position that gambling-
related harm should be considered as a public health issue.

Gambling is a legitimate leisure activity enjoyed by many and the majority of those who
gamble appear to do so with enjoyment, and without exhibiting any signs of problematic
behaviour. There are however significant numbers of people who do experience significant
harm as result of their gambling.

Page 8 of 35



10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

11.0

111

11.2

11.3

Page 21 Agenda Item 4

For these problem gamblers, harm can include higher levels of physical and mental iliness,
debt problems, relationship breakdown and, in some cases, criminality. It can also be
associated with substance misuse.

There can also be considerable negative effects experienced by the wider group of people
around a gambler. The health and wellbeing of partners, children, and friends can all be
negatively affected.

Therefore the Licensing Authority considers that Public Health teams, whilst not a
responsible authority under the Act, can still assist the Licensing Authority to address
gambling-related harms in its area.

The licensing authority would therefore like to engage with the local Public Health team in
the future development of this Statement of Principles and the Local Area Profile. 1t is
hoped that the Public Health team will be able to help the Licensing Authority:

e Identify and interpret health data and evidence to inform the review of the Statement
and develop locally tailored local area profiles.

e Make decisions that benefit and protect the health and wellbeing of local
communities.

e Be clear on issues which they can have regard to when deciding on licenses for a
wide range of gambling activities.

e |dentify and interpret health data and evidence to inform the review of the Statement;

e Conduct a health-impact assessment of gambling in the local area or assess any
existing information.

Local Risk Assessments

Frem Since 6 April 2016 it wit-be has been a requirement for operators to assess local risks
to the licensing objectives taking into account this Council’s Policy. The operator must also
have policies, procedures and control measures in place to mitigate these risks. Risk
assessments must be reviewed whenever there are significant changes in local
circumstances, or at the premises, or when applying for a new licence or a variation of a
licence. Risks in this context include actual, potential and possible future emerging risks to
the licensing objectives.

The Licensing Authority will expect the local risk assessment to consider, for example:

e whether the premise is in an area of deprivation;

e whether the premise is in an area subject to high levels of crime and/or disorder;

e whether the premise is near an addiction treatment facility and in general consider the
demographics of the area in relation to vulnerable groups;

¢ the location of sensitive buildings such as schools, playgrounds, toy shops, leisure
centres, libraries and other areas where children are likely to gather; and

e how vulnerable persons as defined within this Policy are protected.

In compiling their local risk assessment the Licensing Authority shall also expect operators

to take into account the general principles as set out in this Policy and the Local Area
Profile.

Page 9 of 35



114

11.5

11.6

11.7

11.8

11.9

Page 22 Agenda Item 4

Other matters that the risk assessment may include are, for example:

e Staff training, including refresher training, e.g. such as intervention when customers
show signs of excessive gambling, in the mandatory licensing conditions, in location of
the premises licence; in location of information relating to gambling care providers, etc.

e Where installed, details of CCTV coverage and how the system will be monitored.

e Layout of the premises to ensure staff have unobstructed views of persons using the
premises or where this is not possible, evidence of how this can be achieved.

e The number of staff employed at the premises at any one time taking into account any
effects from seasonal trade in the area.

e Where only one staff member is employed — in the case of smaller premises, — what the
supervisory and monitoring arrangements are when that person is absent from the
licensed area or distracted for any other reason.

e Provision of signage and documents relating to games rules, gambling care providers.

e The mix of gambling provided.

e Consideration of primary gambling activity and location of gaming machines.

Operators are expected to share their risk assessments with the Licensing Authority when
applying for a new premises licence, applying for a variation to an existing licensed premise
or otherwise upon request. These risk assessments must in any event be kept under
regular review and updated as necessary. The Licensing Authority expects a copy of the
most recent local risk assessment to be kept on each premises that is subject to a premises
licence under the Gambling Act 2005.

The information contained within the risk assessment may be used to inform the decision
the Licensing Authority makes about whether or not to grant the licence, to grant the licence
with special conditions or to refuse the application.

However, in all circumstances each application will be treated on its own merits with the
onus on the applicant providing the Licensing Authority with sufficient information to make
their determination with the underpinning statutory aim of permitting gambling subject to
being reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives.

In its Guidance to Licensing Authorities, the Gambling Commission suggests that Licensing
Authorities should adopt a ‘Local Area Profile’. The Guidance suggests that a Local Area
Profile is a process of gathering and presenting information about a locality and any
particular areas of concern within that locality. It underpins and explains the approach that
the Llcensmg Authorlty will apply When grantmg Ilcences By—elevelemng—a—l:ee&l—AFea
- The
Licensing Authority has created a Local Area Profile to assist applicants and licence holders
to conduct their local risk assessments.

The Licensing Authority expects local risk assessments to be kept under review and
updated as necessary. The Licensing Authority expect local risk assessments to be subject
to a review whenever there is a significant change at or near the premises and in any event
at least every twelve months.

Page 10 of 35



12.0

12.1

12.2

12.3

12.4

12.5

12.6

12.7

12.8

Page 23 Agenda Item 4

Premises licences
A premises licence can authorise the provision of facilities at the following :

e casino premises

e bingo premises

e betting premises, including betting tracks
e adult gaming centres

e family entertainment centres

Premises can be ‘any place’ but the Act generally prevents more than one premises licence
applying to any one place. A single building could be subject to more than one premises
licence provided they are for different parts of the building and those parts can be
reasonably regarded as being separate ‘premises’.

This will allow large, multiple unit premises such as tracks, shopping malls or service
stations to obtain discrete premises licences, with appropriate safeguards in place. The
Licensing Authority will pay particular attention if there are issues about sub-divisions of a
single building or plot and mandatory conditions relating to access between premises are
observed. The Licensing Authority will not consider that areas of a building that are
artificially or temporarily separated, for example by ropes or moveable partition, can
properly be regarded as different premises. Whether different parts of a building can
properly be regarded as being separate premises will depend on the individual
circumstances of the case.

A patrticular requirement might be for entrances and exits from parts of a building covered
by one or more licences to be separate and identifiable so that the separation of the
premises is not compromised and people are not allowed to ‘drift’ accidentally into a
gambling area. It should normally be possible to access the premises without going
through another licensed premises or premises with a permit. The Licensing Authority
would also expect customers to be able to participate in the activity named on the premises
licence.

The Secretary of State appointed an independent Casino Advisory Panel to advise the
Government on the areas in which small and/or large casinos may be located. The
Borough of Redditch was not identified as a suitable location for a casino; consequently the
Licensing Authority is currently prevented from granting a Casino Premises Licence.

The Council has not passed a resolution under section 166(5) of the Gambling Act 2005 to
not issue casino premises licences. If such a resolution were considered in the future, the

Council would carry out a full public consultation and consider all responses before passing
such a resolution.

The Licensing Authority will not turn down applications for premises licences where relevant
objections can be dealt with through the use of licence conditions.

Other than an application for a betting premises licence for a track, the Licensing Authority
are not able to issue a premises licence unless the applicant holds the relevant operating
licence from the Gambling Commission.

Page 11 of 35



12.9

12.10

12.11

12.12

12.13

12.14

12.15

13.0

13.1

Page 24 Agenda ltem 4

When considering applications for premises licences the Licensing Authority will not take
into account either the expected ‘demand’ for facilities or the likelihood of planning
permission or building regulation approval being granted, as well as ‘moral’ objections to
gambling. Equally, the grant of a premises licence would not prejudice or prevent any
action that may be appropriate under the law relating to planning or building regulations.

The Licensing Authority are aware that demand issues cannot be considered with regard to
the location of premises but that considerations in terms of the licensing objectives are
relevant to our decision-making. Should any specific policy be decided upon as regards
areas where gambling premises should not be located, this statement will be updated.

The Licensing Authority will only issue a premises licence once the Licensing Authority are
satisfied that the premises is ready to be used for gambling in the reasonably near future,
consistent with the scale of building or alterations required. If the construction of a
premises is not yet complete, or if they need alteration, or the applicant does not yet have a
right to occupy them, then an application for a provisional statement should be made.

The Licensing Authority will apply a two stage consideration process if there is outstanding
construction or alteration works at the premises:

e should the premises be permitted to be used for gambling;
e can appropriate conditions be imposed to cater for the situation that the premises is not
yet in the state in which they should be before gambling takes place.

The Licensing Authority is entitled to decide whether or not it is appropriate to grant a
licence subject to conditions.

Applicants for premises licences are encouraged to propose any prohibitions or restrictions
of their own in circumstances where it is felt that the presence of children would be
undesirable or inappropriate.

The Licensing Authority will maintain a public register of premises licence applications
received which may be viewed at the Council Offices during normal office hours which are
generally Monday — Friday 9am until 5pm.

Responsible authorities

Responsible authorities are identified in the legislation, and have to be notified about
licence applications so that they can identify any risks. The responsible authorities that the
Licensing Authority recognises are listed below, contact details for each of the responsible
authorities identified are available on our website www.redditchbc.gov.uk, and will be sent
on request.

the Gambling Commission

the Chief of Police for the area

Fire & Rescue Service

Redditch Planning Department

Environmental Services Department

Worcestershire Safeguarding Children Board

HM Revenue and Customs

Redditch Licensing Department

any other bodies identified in Regulation by the Secretary of State,

Page 12 of 35



Page 25 Agenda Item 4

o for vessels, the Environment Agency, Canal and River Trust, Secretary of State.

13.2 Any concerns expressed by a Responsible Authority cannot be taken into account unless
they are relevant to the application itself and the licensing objectives. However, each
representation will be considered on its own individual merits.

14.0 Interested Parties
14.1 Aninterested party is someone who:

¢ lives sufficiently close to the premises to be likely to be affected by the authorised
activities; or

e has business interests that might be affected by the authorised activities; or

e represents persons in either of the two groups above.

14.2 The Licensing Authority will generally require written evidence that a person/body
‘represents’ someone who either lives sufficiently close to the premises to be likely to be
affected by the authorised activities and/or has business interests that might be affected by
the authorised activities. A letter from one of these persons, requesting the representations
is sufficient. Whilst this may not apply to those elected ward members or MP or Parish
Councillors, those persons should be aware of the need to represent the whole of the
community that they represent and not just the vocal ‘minority’.

14.3 In determining whether someone lives sufficiently close to a particular premises so as to be
affected, the Licensing Authority will take into account, among other things :

the size of the premises

the nature of the premises

the distance of the premises from the person making the representation
the identity of the complainant

the potential impact of the premises

14.4 In determining whether a person has a business interest which could be affected the
Council will consider, among other things:

e the size of the premises

e the catchment area of the premises, and

¢ whether the person making the representation has business interests in the catchment
area that might be affected

14.5 If an existing gambling business makes a representation that it is going to be affected by
another gambling business starting up in the area, the Licensing Authority would not
consider this, in the absence of other evidence, as a relevant representation as it does not
relate to the licensing objectives and instead relates to demand or competition.

14.6 The Licensing Authority may consider a representation to be either frivolous or vexatious,
and reject it. This will generally be a matter of fact given the circumstances of each
individual case but, before coming to a decision the Licensing Authority will normally
consider:

e who is making the representation and whether there is a history of making
representations that are not relevant,
e whether it raises an issue relevant to the licensing objectives, or

Page 13 of 35



15.0
15.1

15.2

15.3

15.4

15.5

16.0
16.1

16.2

16.3

Page 26 Agenda Item 4

e whether it raises issues specifically to do with the premises which are the subject of the
application.

Licence conditions

In particular cases the Licensing Authority may find it necessary to impose conditions
beyond appropriate mandatory and default conditions. Any such conditions will be relevant
to the need to make the building suitable for use as a gambling facility; directly related to
the premises and the type of licence applied for; fairly and reasonably related to the scale
and type of premises and reasonable in all other respects. The Licensing Authority will not
have recourse to a pool of standard conditions.

The Licensing Authority will also ensure that where category C or above machines that are
on offer in premises to which children are admitted are located in an area of the premises
which is separated by a physical barrier to prevent access other than through a designated
entrance; the designated area is supervised and observed by staff or the licence holder.

Examples of conditions which are likely to be attached in certain circumstances include
those relating to opening hours, segregation of gambling from non-gambling areas
frequented by children, SIA licensed door supervisors, appropriate signage for adult only
areas, age limits, or keeping children and young persons away from gaming machines.
The Licensing Authority will also expect the applicant to offer their own suggestions as to
ways in which the licensing objectives can be promoted effectively.

The Licensing Authority will not seek to control those matters specified in the Act with
conditions:

e which make it impossible to comply with an operating licence condition imposed by the
Gambling Commission;

e relating to gaming machine categories or method of operation;

e which specify that membership of a club or other body is required; or

e inrelation to stakes, fees, winnings or prizes.

Duplication with other statutory or regulatory regimes will be avoided as far as possible.
The need for conditions will be assessed on the specific merits of each application.

Gaming Machines

Gaming machines include all types of gambling activity which can take place on a machine,
including betting on ‘virtual’ events.

The Act itself prescribes the number and category of gaming machines that are permitted in
each type of gambling premises.

Subject to the provisions of the Act, gaming machines can be made available in a wide
variety of premises, including:

casinos;

bingo premises;

betting premises, (including tracks );

adult gaming centres;

family entertainment centres;

clubs;

pubs and other alcohol licensed premises;

Page 14 of 35



16.4

16.5

17

17.1

17.2

17.3

17.4

17.5

17.6

17.7

Page 27 Agenda ltem 4

e travelling fairs.

A machine is not a gaming machine if the winning of a prize is determined purely by the
player’s skill. However, any element of ‘chance’ imparted by the action of the machine
would bring it within the definition of a gaming machine.

The Licensing Authority will encourage permit and premises licence holders to adopt
applicable codes of practice which may be introduced by the amusement industry or
Gambling Commission, from time to time.

Gambling in Alcohol Licensed Premises

There are exemptions in the Act that provide for a limited amount of gambling activity to
take place within premises that are subject to a relevant valid alcohol licence.

These exemptions only apply where a premises is subject to a licence that authorises the
sale of alcohol for consumption on the premises and that has a bar at which alcohol is
served without a requirement that alcohol is served only with food.

In all cases the licensing authority considers that gambling must remain ancillary to the
main purpose of the premises.

Automatic entitlement to two gaming machines

Section 282 of the Act provides an automatic entitlement to alcohol licence holders to make
available two gaming machines (of category C or D) for use in alcohol-licensed premises.
To take advantage of this entitlement, the person who holds the on-premises alcohol
licence must give notice to the Licensing Authority of their intention to make gaming
machines available for use, and must pay the prescribed fee.

This is not an authorisation procedure. The Licensing Authority has no discretion to
consider the notification or to turn it down. The only matter to determine is whether the
person applying for the automatic gaming machine entitlement is the holder of the alcohol
licence and whether the prescribed fee has been paid. There is no statutory requirement for
pubs and other alcohol-licensed premises to display a notice of their automatic entitlement
to gaming machines.

The Licensing Authority expects licence holders making machines available in accordance
with their automatic entitlement to comply with the Gambling Commission’s code of practice
for gaming machines in clubs and premises with an alcohol licence.

The Licensing Authority can remove the automatic authorisation in respect of any particular
premises by making an order under section 284 of the Act. The Licensing Authority can do
so if:

« provision of the machines is not reasonably consistent with the pursuit of the
licensing objectives

e gaming has taken place on the premises that breaches a condition of s.282, for
example the gaming machines have been made available in a way that does not
comply with requirements on the location and operation of gaming machines

« the premises are mainly used for gaming

Page 15 of 35



17.8

17.9

17.10

17.11

17.12

17.13

17.14

17.15

17.16

Page 28 Agenda ltem 4

e an offence under the Act has been committed on the premises.

Before making an order, the Licensing Authority will give the licensee at least 21 days’
notice of the intention to make the order and will consider any representations that they
may make. The Licensing Authority will hold a hearing if the licensee so requests and will
comply with any other procedural requirements set out in regulations. If there is no appeal,
the order will take effect 21 days after notice of the intention was given. The Licensing
Authority must give the licensee a copy of the order and written reasons for making it. The
licensee may appeal to the Magistrates’ Court.

Licensed Premises Gaming Machine Permits

Where the holder of a relevant alcohol licence wishes to make more than two gaming
machines available, they may apply for a licensed premises gaming machine permit. Such
a permit can authorise the provision of any number of category C or D gaming machines
within the relevant licensed premises.

The Licensing Authority expects licence holders making machines available in accordance
with a licensed premises gaming machine permit to comply with the Gambling
Commission’s code of practice for gaming machines in clubs and premises with an alcohol
licence.

Applications must be made by a person or organisation that holds the on-premises alcohol
licence for the premises for which the application is made and must include information on
the premises to which it relates and the number and category of gaming machines sought.

The Licensing Authority may also require an applicant to submit a plan of the premises
showing where the gaming machines are to be located and showing the position of the bar.

In determining an application, the Licensing Authority must have regard to the licensing
objectives and to the Gambling Commission’s Guidance to Licensing Authorities. The
Licensing Authority may also take account of any other matters that are considered relevant
to the application.

In particular the Licensing Authority will have regard to the size and nature of the premises,
the number of gaming machines requested and the ability of the licence holder to comply
with the relevant code of practice.

The application does not require notification to the Commission or police before
determination, however, the Licensing Authority is able to specify this as a requirement
should they see fit.

The Licensing Authority may grant or refuse an application. In granting the application, it
may vary the number and category of gaming machines authorised by the permit. If
granted, the Licensing Authority will issue the permit as soon as possible after that. Where
they refuse the application they will notify the applicant as soon as possible, setting out the
reasons for refusal. The Licensing Authority will not refuse an application, or grant it for a
different number or category of machines, unless they have notified the applicant of their
intention to do so and given the applicant an opportunity to make representations, orally, in
writing, or both.

Page 16 of 35



Page 29 Agenda ltem 4

17.17 The Licensing Authority is able to cancel a permit. It may only do so in specified
circumstances which include if the premises are used wholly or mainly by children or young
persons or if an offence under the Act has been committed. Before it cancels a permit the
Licensing Authority will notify the holder, giving 21 days notice of intention to cancel,
consider any representations made by the holder, hold a hearing if requested, and comply
with any other prescribed requirements relating to the procedure to be followed. Where the
Licensing Authority cancels the permit, the cancellation does not take effect until the period
for appealing against that decision has elapsed or, where an appeal is made, until the
appeal is determined.

17.18 The Licensing Authority can also cancel a permit if the holder fails to pay the annual fee,
unless failure is the result of an administrative error. The court may order forfeiture of the
permit if the holder is convicted of a relevant offence.

17.19 The applicant may appeal to the Magistrates’ Court against the Licensing Authority’s
decision not to issue a permit. The holder can also appeal against a decision to cancel a
permit.

Exempt Gaming

17.20 Exempt gaming is generally permissible in any relevant alcohol licensed premises. Such
gaming must be equal chance gaming and must be ancillary to the purposes of the
premises. This provision is automatically available to all such premises, but is subject to
statutory stakes and prize limits determined by the Secretary of State.

17.21 Equal chance gaming is gaming that does not involve staking against a bank and the
chances of winning are equally favourable to all participants. It includes games such as
backgammon, mah-jong, rummy, kalooki, dominoes, cribbage, bingo and poker.

17.22 The Secretary of State has set both daily and weekly prize limits for exempt gaming in
alcohol licensed premises and details of these can be found on the Gambling Commission’s
website.

17.23 The Licensing Authority expects exempt gaming in alcohol licensed premises to comply
with the Gambling Commission’s code of practice on equal chance gaming in clubs and
premises with an alcohol licence.

17.24 The Licensing Authority can remove the automatic authorisation for exempt gaming in
respect of any particular premises by making an order under s.284 of the Act, if:

e provision of the gaming is not reasonably consistent with the pursuit of the licensing
objectives

e gaming has taken place on the premises that breaches a condition of s.279, for
example the gaming does not abide by the prescribed limits for stakes and prizes, a
participation fee is charged for the gaming or an amount is deducted or levied from
sums staked or won

« the premises are mainly used for gaming

e an offence under the Act has been committed on the premises.

17.25 Before making an order, the Licensing Authority will give the licensee at least 21 days’
notice of the intention to make the order and consider any representations that they may

Page 17 of 35



18

18.1

18.2

18.3

18.4

18.5

18.6

18.7

18.8

18.9

Page 30 Agenda ltem 4

make. The Licensing Authority will hold a hearing if the licensee so requests and will
comply with any other procedural requirements set out in regulations. If there is no appeal,
the order will take effect 21 days after notice of the intention was given. The Licensing
Authority must give the licensee a copy of the order and written reasons for making it. The
licensee may appeal to the Magistrates’ Court.

Gambling in Clubs

Defining Clubs

The Act creates a separate regime for gaming in clubs from that in other relevant alcohol
licensed premises. It defines two types of club for the purposes of gaming:

« members’ clubs (including miners’ welfare institutes)
e commercial clubs.

This is an important distinction in respect of the gaming that may take place.

A members’ club is a club that is not established as a commercial enterprise and is
conducted for the benefit of its members. Examples include working mens' clubs, miners'
welfare institutes, branches of the Royal British Legion and clubs with political affiliations.

Miners’ welfare institutes are associations established for recreational or social purposes.
They are managed by representatives of miners or use premises regulated by a charitable
trust which has received funds from one of a number of mining organisations.

A commercial club is a club established for commercial gain, whether or not they are
actually making a commercial gain. Examples include commercial snooker clubs, clubs
established as private companies and clubs established for personal profit.

The Licensing Authority expects exempt gaming in clubs to comply with the Gambling

Commission’s code of practice on equal chance gaming in clubs and premises with an
alcohol licence.

Exempt Gaming

Exempt gaming is generally permissible in any club. Such gaming must be equal chance
gaming and be ancillary to the purposes of the club. This provision is automatically
available to all such premises, but is subject to statutory stakes and prize limits determined
by the Secretary of State.

Equal chance gaming is gaming that does not involve staking against a bank and the
chances of winning are equally favourable to all participants. It includes games such as
backgammon, mah-jong, rummy, kalooki, dominoes, cribbage, bingo and poker.

The Secretary of State has set both daily and weekly prize limits for exempt gaming.
Different higher stakes and prizes are allowed for exempt gaming in clubs than are allowed
in alcohol-licensed premises and details of these can be found on the Gambling
Commission’s website.

Clubs may levy a charge for participation in equal chance gaming under the exempt gaming
rules. The amount they may charge is as prescribed in regulations and the relevant details

Page 18 of 35



Page 31 Agenda ltem 4

can be found on the Gambling Commission’s website. However in order to qualify as
exempt gaming, clubs may not charge a rake on games (a commission or fee deducted
from the prize fund), or levy or deduct an amount from stakes or winnings.

18.10 The Licensing Authority expects exempt gaming in clubs to comply with the Gambling

Commission’s code of practice on equal chance gaming in clubs and premises with an
alcohol licence.

Club Gaming Permits

18.11 The Licensing Authority may grant members’ clubs and miners’ welfare institutes (but not
commercial clubs) club gaming permits which authorise the establishments to provide
gaming machines, equal chance gaming (without having to abide by the stake and prize
limits which would apply to exempt gaming in the absence of a permit) and games of
chance as prescribed in regulations namely pontoon and chemin de fer. This is in addition
to the exempt gaming authorisation detailed above.

18.12 Club gaming permits allow the provision of no more than three gaming machines. These
may be from categories B3A, B4, C or D but only one B3A machine can be sited as part of
this entitlement.

18.13 Where a club has gaming machines the licensing authority expects the club to comply with

the Gambling Commission’s code of practice for gaming machines in clubs and premises
with an alcohol licence.

Club Machine Permits

18.14 If a members’ club or a miners’ welfare institute does not wish to have the full range of
facilities permitted by a club gaming permit, they may apply to the Licensing Authority for a
club machine permit under s.273 of the Act. This type of permit authorises the holder to
have up to three gaming machines of categories B3A, B4, C and D.

18.15 Commercial clubs are also able to apply for a club machine permit, although such a permit
does not allow the siting of category B3A gaming machines by commercial clubs.

18.16 Where a club has gaming machines the Licensing Authority expects the club to comply with

the Gambling Commission’s code of practice for gaming machines in clubs and premises
with an alcohol licence.

Applications for Club Gaming Permits and Club Machine Permits

18.17 Applications for permits must be accompanied by the prescribed documents and fees and
must be copied to the Gambling Commission and the Chief Officer of Police within the
prescribed period. The Commission and the Police may object to the permit being granted
and if such objections are received, the Licensing Authority will hold a hearing.

18.18 The Licensing Authority may grant or refuse a permit, but it may not attach any conditions
to a permit.

18.19 The Licensing Authority can only refuse an application on the grounds that:

Page 19 of 35



18.20

18.21

18.22

18.23

18.24

18.25

18.26

18.27

18.28

18.29

Page 32 Agenda ltem 4

a) the applicant does not fulfil the requirements for a members’ or commercial club or
miners’ welfare institute and therefore is not entitled to receive the type of permit for
which it has applied

b) the applicant’s premises are used wholly or mainly by children and/or young persons

c) an offence under the Act or a breach of a permit has been committed by the
applicant while providing gaming facilities

d) a permit held by the applicant has been cancelled in the previous ten years

e) an objection has been lodged by the Commission or the police.

If the Licensing Authority is satisfied that (a) or (b) is the case, it must refuse the
application. The Licensing Authority will have regard to relevant guidance issued by the
Commission and (subject to that guidance), the licensing objectives.

In cases where an objection has been lodged by the Commission or the police, the
Licensing Authority is obliged to determine whether the objection is valid.

There is a fast-track procedure for clubs in England and Wales which hold a club premises
certificate under s.72 of the Licensing Act 2003. Under the fast-track procedure there is no
opportunity for objections to be made by the Commission or the police, and the grounds
upon which the Licensing Authority can refuse a permit are reduced.

This is because the club or institute will already have been through a licensing process in
relation to its club premises certificate under the 2003 Act, and it is therefore unnecessary
to impose the full requirements of Schedule 12.

Commercial clubs cannot hold club premises certificates under the Licensing Act 2003 and
so cannot use the fast-track procedure.

Determining Applications for Club Gaming Permits

When determining applications for Club Gaming Permits the Licensing Authority will take
steps to satisfy itself that the club meets the requirements of the Act and to enable this to
happen, clubs may be asked to supply additional information and documents in support of
their application.

The Licensing Authority is particularly aware of the potential for club gaming permits to be
misused for illegal poker clubs.

In determining whether a club is a genuine members’ club, the Licensing Authority will take
into account the matters set out in relevant part of the Gambling Commission’s Guidance to
Licensing Authorities.

A visit to the premises before granting of the permit may also be undertaken to assist the
Licensing Authority to understand how the club will operate.

Maintenance of Permits

Club Gaming Permits and Club Machine Permits will have effect for ten years, unless it
ceases to have effect because it is surrendered or lapses or is renewed. However, a permit
granted under the fast-track procedure does not expire, unless it ceases to have effect
because it is surrendered, cancelled or forfeited or it lapses.

Page 20 of 35



18.30

18.31

18.32

18.33

18.34

18.35

18.36

19

19.1

19.2

Page 33 Agenda ltem 4

A permit will lapse if the holder of the permit stops being a club or miners’ welfare institute,
or if it no longer qualifies under the fast-track system for a permit. In addition, a permit will
cease to have effect upon being surrendered to the authority. A notice to surrender must be
accompanied by the permit or a statement explaining why it cannot be produced. The
Licensing Authority must inform the Police and the Commission when a permit has been
surrendered or lapsed.

Cancellation and forfeiture of permits

The Licensing Authority may cancel the permit if:

o the premises are used wholly by children and/or young persons
« an offence or breach of a permit condition has been committed in the course of
gaming activities by the permit holder.

Reference here to ‘a permit condition’ means a condition in the Act or in regulations that the
permit is operating under.

Before cancelling a permit, the Licensing Authority will give the permit holder at least 21
days’ notice of the intention to cancel and consider any representations that they may
make. The Licensing Authority will hold a hearing if the permit holder so requests and will
comply with any other procedural requirements set out in regulations. If there is no appeal,
the cancellation will take effect 21 days after notice of the intention to cancel was given.
The Licensing Authority will notify the permit holder, the Commission and the police that the
permit has been cancelled and the reasons for the cancellation.

Renewal of permits

In accordance with paragraph 24 of Schedule 12 of the Act, an application for renewal of a
permit must be made during the period beginning three months before the licence expires
and ending six weeks before it expires. The procedure for renewal is the same as for an
application.

The duration of the permit will not be curtailed while a renewal application is pending,
including an appeal against a decision not to renew.

If, at the time a permit is renewed, the applicant holds a club premises certificate, the fast-
track procedure will apply as it does when application is first made for the permit.

Unlicensed Family Entertainment Centre Permits
Introduction

Unlicensed family entertainment centres (UFEC) are able to offer only category D machines
in reliance on a gaming machine permit. Any number of category D machines can be made
available with such a permit, although there may be other considerations, such as fire
regulations and health and safety, to take into account. Permits cannot be issued in respect
of vessels or vehicles.

uFECs are premises which are ‘wholly or mainly’ used for making gaming machines
available. The permit cannot therefore be granted for an entire shopping centre, airport or
bowling alley, for example.

Page 21 of 35



19.3

19.4

19.5

19.6

19.7

19.8

19.9

Page 34 Agenda ltem 4

Applications for Unlicensed Family Entertainment Centre Permits

The application for a permit can only be made by a person who occupies or plans to occupy
the premises to be used as an uFEC and, if the applicant is an individual, he or she must be
aged 18 or over. Applications for a permit cannot be made if a premises licence under the
Gambling Act 2005 is in effect for the same premises. The application must be made to the
licensing authority in whose area the premises are wholly or partly situated.

The application must be submitted on Licensing Authority’s standard form and be
accompanied by the prescribed application fee. The Licensing Authority also requires the
application to be accompanied by a plan of the premises that will be used as an uFEC,
which shows the location of any gaming machines that will be provided if the permit were to
be granted.

The Licensing Authority requires applicants for uFEC permits to provide a Basic Disclosure

certificate issued by the Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) within a period of one month
before the application is made.

Consideration of Applications

The Licensing Authority can grant or refuse an application for a permit, but cannot add
conditions. An application for a permit may be granted only if the licensing authority is
satisfied that the premises will be used as an UFEC, and if the chief officer of police has
been consulted on the application.

When considering an application, the Licensing Authority will consider the suitability of the
applicant. Given that family entertainment centres are likely to appeal particularly to
children and young persons, the licensing authority will give particular weight to matters
relating to the protection of children from being harmed or exploited by gambling.

In considering the application, the Licensing Authority shall have regard to the Gambling
Commission’s Guidance to Licensing Authorities and will also have regard to the licensing
objectives.

The Licensing Authority may also consider asking applicants to demonstrate:

« that they have suitable policies and procedures in place for the safeguarding of
children and young persons.

« a full understanding of the maximum stakes and prizes of the gambling that is
permissible in UFECs

« that the applicant has no relevant convictions (those that are set out in Schedule 7 of
the Act)

« that employees are at the premises are suitably vetted

o that employees are trained to have a full understanding of the maximum stakes and
prizes.

19.10 The Licensing Authority may not refuse an application unless it has notified the applicant of

the intention to refuse and the reasons for it, and given them an opportunity to make
representations orally or in writing or both.

Page 22 of 35



19.11

19.12

19.13

19.14

20.

20.1

20.2

20.3

20.4

Page 35 Agenda ltem 4

The permit will have effect for ten years, unless it ceases to have effect because it is
surrendered or lapses or is renewed. There is no annual fee for an uUFEC gaming machine
permit.

The permit may lapse for a number of reasons, namely:

« if the holder ceases to occupy the premises

« if the Licensing Authority notifies the holder that the premises are not being used as
an urFeC

« if anindividual permit holder dies, becomes incapable by reason of mental or
physical incapacity, becomes bankrupt, or sequestration of his estate is ordered

« if the company holding the permit ceases to exist, or goes into liquidation.

Renewal of a Permit

An application for renewal of an uFEC gaming machine permit must be made during the
period beginning six months before the permit expires and ending two months before it
expires. The procedure for renewal is the same as for an application. Licensing Authority
may only refuse to renew a permit on the grounds that:

e an authorised local authority officer has been refused access to the premises without
reasonable excuse

« renewal would not be reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives. In this
respect, the licensing authority will have the benefit of having consulted the chief
officer of police and will be aware of any concerns that have arisen about the use of
the premises during the life of the permit.

The duration of the permit will not be curtailed while a renewal application is pending,
including an appeal against a decision not to renew.

Prize Gaming Permits

Gaming is prize gaming if the nature and size of the prize is not determined by the number
of people playing or the amount paid for or raised by the gaming. Normally the prizes are

determined by the operator before play commences.

A prize gaming permit is a permit issued by the Licensing Authority to authorise the
provision of facilities for gaming with prizes on specified premises.

Applications for Prize Gaming Permits

An application for a permit can only be made by a person who occupies or plans to occupy
the relevant premises and if the applicant is an individual, he must be aged 18 or over. An
application for a permit cannot be made if a premises licence or club gaming permit is in
effect for the same premises under the Gambling Act 2005. The application must be made
to the Licensing Authority in whose area the premises are wholly or partly situated.

The application must be submitted on Licensing Authority’s standard form and be
accompanied by the prescribed application fee. The Licensing Authority also requires the
application to be accompanied by a plan of the premises that will be used for gaming with
prizes.

Page 23 of 35



Page 36 Agenda ltem 4

20.5 The Licensing Authority requires applicants for prize gaming permits to provide a Basic
Disclosure certificate issued by the Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) within a period of
one month before the application is made.

Consideration of Applications

20.6 In considering an application, the licensing authority shall have regard to the Gambling
Commission’s Guidance to Licensing Authorities and will also have regard to the licensing
objectives.

20.7 The Licensing Authority can grant or refuse an application for a permit, but cannot add
conditions.

20.8 The Licensing Authority will grant a prize gaming permit only if they have consulted the
chief officer of police about the application. The Licensing Authority will take account of any
objections that the police may wish to make which are relevant to the licensing objectives.

20.9 Relevant considerations would include the suitability of the applicant in terms of any
convictions that they may have that would make them unsuitable to operate prize gaming;
and the suitability of the premises in relation to their location and any issues concerning
disorder.

20.10 A permit cannot be issued in respect of a vessel or a vehicle.

20.11 The Licensing Authority will ask the applicant to set out the types of gaming that they are
intending to offer and expects that the applicant should be able to demonstrate that:

« they understand the limits to stakes and prizes that are set out in regulations
o the gaming offered is within the law.

20.12 The Licensing Authority will not refuse an application unless they have notified the applicant
of the intention to refuse and the reasons for it, and given them an opportunity to make
representations orally or in writing or both.

20.13 If granted, the permit will have effect for ten years, unless it ceases to have effect, lapses or
is renewed. There is no annual fee for prize gaming permits.

20.14 The permit may lapse for a number of reasons:

« if the holder ceases to occupy the premises

« if an individual permit holder dies, becomes incapable by reason of mental or
physical incapacity, becomes bankrupt, or sequestration of his estate is ordered

« if a company holding the permit goes into liquidation

« if the holder (for example a partnership) otherwise ceases to exist.

Renewal of a Prize Gaming Permit

20.15 An application for renewal of a permit must be made during the period beginning six months
before the permit expires and ending two months before it expires. The procedure for
renewal is the same as for an application.

20.16 A permit will not cease to have effect while a renewal application is pending, including an
appeal against a decision not to renew.
Page 24 of 35



21.0

21.1

21.2

22.0

22.1

22.2

Page 37 Agenda ltem 4

Temporary Use Notices

These allow the use of premises for gambling where there is no premises licence but where
a gambling operator wishes to use the premises temporarily for providing facilities for
gambling. The Licensing Authority would object to notices where it appears that their effect
would be to permit regular gambling in a place that could be described as one set of
premises. Premises that might be suitable for a temporary use notice would include hotels,
conference centres and sporting venues. A temporary use notice may only be granted to a
person or company holding a relevant operating licence.

Temporary use notices may only be used to permit the provision of facilities for equal
chance gaming, where the gaming is intended to produce a single overall winner. Equal
chance gaming is gaming which does not involve playing or staking against a bank and
gives equally favourable chances to all participants. Examples of equal chance gaming
include games such as backgammon, mah-jong, rummy, kalooki, dominoes, cribbage,
bingo and poker.

Occasional Use Notices

Occasional use notices relate to particular activities at tracks. The Licensing Authority’s
only role is to ensure that the statutory limit of 8 days in a calendar year is not exceeded.
Whilst tracks are normally thought of as permanent racecourses, this can also include land
which has a number of uses for example agricultural land upon which a point-to-point
meeting takes place. Land used temporarily as a track can qualify, provided races or
sporting events take place or will take place there. The track need not be a permanent
fixture.

The Licensing Authority will share information with the Gambling Commission in relation to
any Occasional Use Notices received. The Licensing Authority may also work in
partnership with the Gambling Commission to carry out test purchase operations involving
licensed operators that are providing facilities for betting in reliance on an Occasional Use
Notice.

Page 25 of 35



23.

23.1

23.2

23.3

23.4

23.5

23.6

23.7

23.8

Page 38 Agenda ltem 4

Lotteries
Introduction

A lottery is any arrangement that satisfies all of the criteria contained within the statutory
description of either a simple lottery or a complex lottery, under s.14 of the Act.

An arrangement is a simple lottery if:

e persons are required to pay to participate
e one or more prizes are allocated to one or more members of a class
e the prizes are allocated by a process which relies wholly on chance.

An arrangement is a complex lottery if:

persons are required to pay to participate

one or more prizes are allocated to one or more members of a class
the prizes are allocated by a series of processes

the first of those processes relies wholly on chance.

The Gambling Act 2005 provides that promoting or facilitating a lottery is illegal, unless it
falls into one of two categories of permitted lottery, namely:

¢ licensed lotteries — these are large society lotteries and lotteries run for the benefit of
local authorities that are regulated by the Commission and require operating licences

e exempt lotteries — there are four types of exempt lottery that are expressly permitted
under Schedule 11 of the Act, including the small society lottery.

The Licensing Authority is responsible for the registration of societies for the purpose of
carrying on “small society lotteries.” Information on other forms of exempt lotteries is
available from the Gambling Commission website.

The Licensing Authority defines ‘society’ as the society, or any separate branch of such a
society, on whose behalf a lottery is to be promoted, and needs to understand the purposes
for which a society has been established in ensuring that it is a non-commercial
organisation.

Section 19 of the Act defines a society as such if it is established and conducted:

e for charitable purposes, as defined in section 2 of the Charities Act 2006

e for the purpose of enabling participation in, or of supporting, sport, athletics or a
cultural activity

e for any other non-commercial purpose other than that of private gain.

It is inherent in this definition that the society must have been established for one of the
permitted purposes as set out in section 19 of the Act, and that the proceeds of any lottery
must be devoted to those purposes. It is not permissible to establish a society whose sole
purpose is to facilitate lotteries.

Page 26 of 35



Page 39 Agenda ltem 4

Registration Applications

23.9 The Licensing Authority with which a small society lottery is required to register must be in
the area where their principal office is located. If the Licensing Authority believes that a
society’s principal office is situated in another area, it will inform the society and the other
Licensing Authority as soon as possible.

23.10 Applications for small society lottery registrations must be in the form prescribed by the
Secretary of State and be accompanied by both the required registration fee and all
necessary documents required by the Licensing Authority to assess the application.

23.11 If there is any doubt as to the status of a society that makes application for registration to
carry on small society lotteries, the Licensing Authority may require the society to provide
documentary evidence in support of their application. The types of evidence that may be
required include, but are not restricted to:

e A list of the members of the society

e The society’s constitution or a similar document setting out the aims and objectives
of the society and its governance arrangements

e A written declaration from the applicant stating that they represent a bona fide non-
commercial society.

23.12 The Licensing Authority shall refuse an application for registration if in the period of five
years ending with the date of the application—

e an operating licence held by the applicant for registration has been revoked under
section 119(1) of the Act, or

e an application for an operating licence made by the applicant for registration has
been refused.

23.13 The Licensing Authority may refuse an application for registration if they think that—

e the applicant is not a non-commercial society,

e a person who will or may be connected with the promotion of the lottery has been
convicted of a relevant offence, or

e information provided in or with the application for registration is false or misleading.

23.14 The Licensing Authority may only refuse an application for registration after the society has
had the opportunity to make representations at a formal hearing. If the Licensing Authority
is minded to refuse registration, it will inform the society of the reasons why it is minded to
do so and provide it with an outline of the evidence on which it has reached that preliminary
conclusion, in order to enable representations to be made.

23.15 Any representations received will be considered at a formal hearing and the following
principles will be applied when reaching a decision:

¢ Whether allowing the registration of the society would be consistent with the Act

e Whether allowing the registration of the society would be consistent with the
promotion of the licensing objectives

e Whether allowing the registration of the society would be consistent with any relevant
code of practise issued by the Gambling Commission

Page 27 of 35



Page 40 Agenda ltem 4

Promotion of small society lotteries once reqistered

23.16 Participation in a lottery is a form of gambling, and as such the Licensing Authority requires
societies that it registers to conduct their lotteries in a socially responsible manner and in
accordance with the Act.

23.17 The Act requires that lottery tickets may only be sold by persons that are aged 16 or over to
persons that are aged 16 or over.

23.18 As the minimum age for participation in a lottery is 16, the Licensing Authority expects
those societies that it registers to have effective procedures to minimise the risk of lottery
tickets being sold to children, including procedures for:

e checking the age of apparently underage purchasers of lottery tickets
e taking action where there are unlawful attempts to purchase tickets.

23.19 Lotteries may involve the issuing of physical or virtual tickets to participants (a virtual ticket
being non-physical, for example in the form of an email or text message). All tickets must
state:

e the name of the promoting society

¢ the price of the ticket, which must be the same for all tickets

e the name and address of the member of the society who is designated as having
responsibility at the society for promoting small lotteries or, if there is one, the
external lottery manager (ELM)

e the date of the draw, or information which enables the date to be determined.

23.20 The requirement to provide this information can be satisfied by providing an opportunity for
the participant to retain the message electronically or print it.

23.21 The Licensing Authority expects all registered small society lottery operators to maintain
written records of any unsold and returned tickets for a period of one year from the date of
the lottery draw.

23.22 With regards to where small society lottery tickets may be sold, the Licensing Authority
applies the following criteria to all small society lottery operators:

23.23 Lottery tickets must not be sold to a person in any street. For these purposes ‘street’
includes any bridge, road, lane, footway, subway, square, court, alley or passage (including
passages through enclosed premises such as shopping malls) whether a thoroughfare or
not. Tickets may, however, be sold in a street from a static structure such as a kiosk or
display stand. Tickets may also be sold door to door. Licensees must ensure that they have
any necessary local authority permissions, such as a street trading licence.

23.24 This approach is consistent with the operating licence conditions imposed upon operators
of large society lotteries and local authority lotteries.

Page 28 of 35



Page 41 Agenda ltem 4

Financial Returns

23.25 As the purpose of permitted lotteries is to raise money for non-commercial causes, the Act
requires that a minimum proportion of the money raised by the lottery is channelled to the
goals of the society that promoted the lottery. If a small society lottery does not comply with
these limits it will be in breach of the Act’s provisions, and consequently be liable to
prosecution.

23.26 The limits are as follows:

at least 20% of the lottery proceeds must be applied to the purposes of the society
no single prize may be worth more than £25,000

rollovers between lotteries are only permitted where every lottery affected is also a
small society lottery promoted by the same society, and the maximum single prize is
£25,000

every ticket in the lottery must cost the same and the society must take payment for
the ticket fee before entry into the draw is allowed

23.27 The Act sets out the information that the promoting society of a small society lottery must
send as returns to the licensing authority with which it is registered, following each lottery
held. This information allows the Licensing Authority to assess whether financial limits are
being adhered to and to ensure that any money raised is applied for the proper purpose.

23.28 The following information must be submitted:

the arrangements for the lottery — specifically the date on which tickets were
available for sale or supply, the dates of any draw and the value of prizes, including
any donated prizes and any rollover

the total proceeds of the lottery

the amounts deducted by the promoters of the lottery in providing prizes, including
prizes in accordance with any rollovers

the amounts deducted by the promoters of the lottery in respect of costs incurred in
organising the lottery

the amount applied to the purpose for which the promoting society is conducted (this
must be at least 20% of the proceeds)

whether any expenses incurred in connection with the lottery were not paid for by
deduction from the proceeds, and, if so, the amount of expenses and the sources
from which they were paid.

23.29 The Act also requires that returns must:

be sent to the Licensing Authority no later than three months after the date of the
lottery draw, or in the case of ‘instant lotteries’ (scratch cards) within three months of
the last date on which tickets were on sale

be signed (electronic signatures are acceptable if the return is sent electronically) by
two members of the society, who must be aged 18 or older, are appointed for the
purpose in writing by the society or, if it has one, its governing body, and be
accompanied by a copy of their letter or letters of appointment.

23.30 The Licensing Authority allows for returns to be sent to them both electronically and
manually. The form of returns required can be downloaded from the Licensing Authority’s
website.

Page 29 of 35



23.31

23.32

23.33

23.34

23.35

24.0
24.1

24.2

24.3

Page 42 Agenda ltem 4

Where societies run more than one lottery in a calendar year, the Licensing Authority will
monitor the cumulative totals of returns to ensure that societies do not breach the annual
monetary limit of £250,000 on ticket sales.

The Licensing Authority will notify the Commission if returns reveal that a society’s lotteries
have exceeded the values permissible, and such notifications will be copied to the society
in question.

Revocation of a registration

The Licensing Authority may determine to revoke the registration of a society if it thinks that
they would have had to, or would be entitled to, refuse an application for registration if it
were being made at that time.

Revocations cannot take place unless the society has been given an opportunity to make
representations at a hearing. In preparation for this, the Licensing Authority will inform the
society of the reasons why it is minded to revoke the registration and provide them with the
evidence on which it has reached that preliminary conclusion.

Any representations received will be considered at a formal hearing and the following
principles will be applied when reaching a decision:

e Whether allowing the registration of the society to continue would be consistent with
the Act

e Whether allowing the registration of the society to continue would be consistent with
the promotion of the licensing objectives

e Whether allowing the registration of the society to continue would be consistent with
any relevant code of practise issued by the Gambling Commission.

Exchange of Information

To ensure the licensing objectives are met, the Licensing Authority will establish a close
working relationship with the police, the Gambling Commission and, where appropriate,
other responsible authorities.

Subiject to the provisions of the Data Protection Act 1998, the Licensing Authority will share
any information it receives through the application process with the Gambling Commission
and any relevant responsible authority. In doing so, the Licensing Authority will have regard
to the Act itself, any guidance issued by the Commission and to any Regulations issued by
the Secretary of State. People can access personal information that the Licensing Authority
holds about them by contacting our Information Management Officer.

The Licensing Authority is committed to being open about what it does and how the
Licensing Authority comes to decisions, in accordance with the spirit of the Freedom of
Information Act 2000 (FOIA). An important feature of the FOIA is the requirement for each
public authority to produce a publication scheme setting out what information it will publish
as a matter of course, how and when it will be published, and whether this information will
be free of charge or on payment. Copies of our FOI publication scheme are available on
request from our Information Management Officer or via the Council’'s website
www.redditchbc.gov.uk.

Page 30 of 35


http://www.redditchbc.gov.uk/

24.4

24.5

25.0
25.1

25.2

25.3

254

25.5

25.6

25.7

Page 43 Agenda ltem 4

FOIA also provides the public with a general right of access to information held by public
authorities, and subject to exemptions, to be supplied with a copy of that information.
Individual requests should be made in writing to the Information Management Officer or via
the Council’s website.

Unless restricted by the Gambling Act, details about applications, licences and
representations will be made available in our public register. Representations that the
Licensing Authority accepts will be copied in their entirety to applicants, to provide an
opportunity for mediation and to ensure that the rights of the applicant are not
compromised.

Enforcement Protocols

The main enforcement and compliance role for the Licensing Authority in terms of the
Gambling Act 2005 will be to ensure compliance with the premises licences and other
permissions which it authorises. The Gambling Commission will be the enforcement body
for the operator and personal licences and will also take the lead role on the investigation
and where appropriate, the prosecution of illegal gambling. Any concerns about
manufacture, supply or repair of gaming machines will not be dealt with by the Licensing
Authority but will be notified to the Gambling Commission.

The Licensing Authority will work with the Commission, the Police and other enforcing
authorities, having regard to any specific guidance produced by the Gambling Commission,
relevant codes of practice, the licensing objectives and this statement of principles, to
provide for the targeting of agreed problem or high-risk premises. A lighter touch will be
applied to those premises which are shown to be well managed and maintained.

The overall aim is to permit the use of premises for gambling. With that in mind it is
intended that action will generally be taken against ‘problem’ premises through the licence
review process.

We will also have regard to the Regulators’ Code whilst carrying out our regulatory
functions.

The Licensing Authority will endeavour to be proportionate; accountable; consistent;
transparent and targeted, as well as avoiding duplication with other regulatory regimes so
far as possible.

In order to ensure compliance with the law, the Licensing Authority will prepare a risk based
inspection programme and will carry out regular ‘routine’ day time programmed inspections,
based on risk assessment in the categories High, Medium and Low and will also carry out
‘non routine’ evening programmed inspections. Where a one off event takes place under a
temporary use notice or occasional use notice, the Licensing Authority may also carry out
inspections to ensure the licensing objectives are being promoted.

High-risk premises are those premises that have a history of complaints and require greater

attention with low risk premises needing only a lighter touch so that resources are
effectively concentrated on problem premises.

Page 31 of 35



26.0

26.1

26.2

26.3

26.4

Page 44 Agenda ltem 4

Reviews

A review of a premises licence can be requested by interested parties or responsible
authorities, however, the Licensing Authority will decide if the review is to be carried out on
the basis of the following:

e In accordance with any relevant Code of Practice and/or guidance issued by the
Gambling Commission

e Consistent with the licensing objectives

e In accordance with our statement of principles.

The Licensing Authority will also consider whether or not the request for a review is
frivolous, vexatious, or repetitious or whether the Licensing Authority would wish to
alter/revoke or suspend the licence.

The Licensing Authority can also initiate a review of a premises licence on the basis of any
reason which the Licensing Authority think is appropriate, including if a premises licence
holder has not provided facilities for gambling at the premises. This is to prevent people
from applying for licences in a speculative manner without intending to use them.

Once a valid application for a review has been received by the Licensing Authority,
representations can be made by responsible authorities and interested parties during the
statutory consultation period. The purpose of the review will be to determine whether the
Licensing Authority should take any action in relation to the licence. The options available
are:

add, remove or amend a licence condition;

remove or amend a default condition, such as opening hours;
suspend the premises licence for a period not exceeding 3 months;
revoke the licence.

Page 32 of 35



Page 45 Agenda ltem 4

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES STATEMENT

This statement is intended to operate within the Council’s commitment to equalities and diversity
including:

Equal treatment regardless of race, gender, age, disability, sexual orientation, religion or belief,
with reasonable adjustments where necessary in line with the Disability Discrimination Act.

e Working to eliminate unlawful discrimination.
e Promoting equal opportunities

e Promoting community cohesion, including good relations between people from different
racial groups.

e Providing reasonable access to interpretation or support on request.

e Responding to the needs of all, and working to engage all sections of the community.

This statement will be assessed as part of a rolling programme of reviews to ensure that it does
not have a detrimental or disproportionate effect on any group. Any concerns that the policy is
operating in a way that could be construed as discriminatory should be passed to the responsible

Manager and will be dealt with as part of the official Complaints Procedure, in line with the
Council’s Equality Schemes.

Page 33 of 35



Page 46

Redditch Borough Council Boundary

Agenda ltem 4

Appendix A

Bradley Green

A448
To Bromsgrove
Worcester
M5

Webheath

Elcocks Brook

Ham Green

Feckenham

A441
To Birmingham | Bordesley
M42

Riverside
Enfield

A435
Birmingham
M42, M40

J l North
Moons Moat To
(J
J

Matchborough
ast

Batchley

Matchborough
West

7,
Park
Farm

‘\ .
Smallwood
L)
Lodge Park
L
° o

Headless Cross
Greenlands

Woodrow

Walkwood
A435
To Alcester
Stratford-upon-Avon
Evesham
Hunt End

A441
To Evesham

A S

Astwood Bank

Y,

A4189
To Henley in Arden
Warwick

Page 34 of 35



Page 47 Agenda ltem 4

Appendix B

List of Consultees

Chief Officer of West Mercia Police

Gambling Commission

All Other Responsible Authorities Identified in the Gambling Act 2005

The Director of Public Health

District Councillors

Parish Councils

Holders of Premises Licences issued by the Council under the Gambling Act 2005

Gambling Trade Associations:

Association of British Bookmakers

British Amusement Catering Trade Association
Bingo Association

National Casino Forum

Lotteries Council

Hospice Lotteries Association

Organisations working with those who have a gambling problem:

GamCare
Gamblers Anonymous

Page 35 of 35



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 49 Agenda ltem 5

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

LICENSING
COMMITTEE 5" March 2018

FURTHER CONSIDERATION OF RECENT AMENDMENTS MADE TO
HACKNEY CARRIAGE AND PRIVATE HIRE DRIVER LICENSING POLICY

Relevant Portfolio Holder Councillor Joe Baker

Portfolio Holder Consulted Yes

Relevant Head of Service Simon Wilkes - Head of
Worcestershire Regulatory Services

Wards Affected All Wards

Ward Councillor Consulted N/A

Non-Key Decision

1. SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS

On the 6" November 2017, the Licensing Committee resolved to
approve a revised policy for the licensing of Hackney Carriage and
Private Hire drivers. The revised policy introduced new requirements
in relation to driver training and testing.

At a recent Taxi Liaison Forum, Members present agreed to give
further consideration to the introduction of these new requirements
following representations made by licensed drivers at the Forum.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

That Members give further consideration to the additional
requirements introduced in the Council’s Hackney Carriage and
Private Hire Driver Licensing Policy and RESOLVE whether or not
to make any further amendments to this Policy.

3. KEY ISSUES

Financial Implications

3.1  Any costs incurred in making further amendments to the Policy would
need to be met from existing budgets held by Worcestershire
Regulatory Services.

Legal Implications

3.2  The Council has an adopted Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver
Licensing Policy that can be amended following consultation and
proper consideration. The Policy has been amended to reflect the new



Page 50 Agenda ltem 5

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

LICENSING
COMMITTEE 5" March 2018

requirements for driver testing and training. Any further amendment
will require a period of consultation and consideration prior to the
amendment being implemented.

3.4 Members are reminded that the primary consideration in Licensing
Hackney Carriage and Private Hire drivers is the safety of the travelling
public and that the Policy that governs this should reflect that.
However, the Policy should have regard to those who are to be
licensed and be implemented in a fair and reasonable way.

Service / Operational Implications

3.5 Onthe 6™ November 2017, the Licensing Committee resolved to
approve a revised policy for the licensing of Hackney Carriage and
Private Hire drivers with effect on 1% December 2017. This revised
Policy can be seen at Appendix 1.

3.6  The revised Policy introduced a new requirement that licensed drivers
undertake disability awareness training and driving standards
assessments every three years. Prior to the revised Policy taking
effect, drivers only needed to undertake such training on one occasion
— when they first became licensed.

3.7 These new requirements were originally recommended to be
introduced into Policy by the Overview and Scrutiny Board, Improving
Disabled People’s Access to Redditch Taxi Fleet Task Group.

3.8 This Task Group prepared a report that was presented to the Licensing
Committee in July 2016 and contained a number of recommendations
aimed at improving access for disabled people in Redditch to licensed
Hackney Carriage and Private Hire vehicles.

3.9 The Licensing Committee resolved to approve the recommendations of
the Task Group, subject to the carrying out of suitable consultation on
those recommendations that required the Council to amend its
Hackney Carriage and Private Hire licensing policies in order to
implement.

3.10 Consultation on those recommendations, including the
recommendation to require licensed drivers to undertake refresher
training in disability awareness and driving standards every three
years, took place between early October 2016 and the end of
December 2016.

3.11 During the consultation exercise, twenty two consultation surveys were
returned and a submission was also received from the Redditch Taxi
Association (RTA). A table setting out a summary of the survey



Page 51 Agenda ltem 5

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

LICENSING
COMMITTEE 5" March 2018

responses received during the consultation exercise is attached at
Appendix 2. The submission received from the RTA can be seen at
Appendix 3.

3.12 The Licensing Committee gave consideration to all of the consultation
responses received in March 2017 and again in July 2017 before finally
resolving to approve a revised policy on 6™ November 2017.

3.13 Since the decision taken on 6™ November 2017, some Members have
been contacted by licensed drivers concerned by the new requirements
in relation to driver training. Furthermore, at a Taxi and Private Hire
Liaison Forum held on 31% January 2018, over 100 licensed drivers
attended and strongly expressed similar concerns.

3.14 The concerns that continue to be raised are that the new requirements
introduce a disproportionate and unjustified burden on licensed drivers.
The licensed drivers appeared to express the view that additional
training and tests should only be required of drivers that have been the
subject of a relevant complaint against them that has been upheld.

3.15 Representatives of the Redditch Taxi Association (RTA) expressed the
view that they felt insufficient regard had been had to the response that
they submitted to the consultation on behalf of their membership
(Appendix 3).

3.16 In light of the strength of feeling that was clear to those elected
Members present at the Taxi and Private Hire Liaison Forum, the
Chairman of the Licensing Committee agreed that Members would give
the matter further consideration at the next Licensing Committee.

3.17 Members are therefore asked to give this matter further consideration
and resolve whether or not they wish to make any further amendments
to the Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy shown at
Appendix 1.

4. RISK MANAGEMENT

4.1 None

5. APPENDICES

Appendix 1 Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver
Licensing Policy

Appendix 2 Responses received during the Consultation



Page 52 Agenda ltem 5

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

LICENSING
COMMITTEE 5™ March 2018
Appendix 3 Redditch Taxi Association Response to the

Consultation

AUTHOR OF REPORT

Name: Dave Etheridge — Senior Practitioner (Licensing)
Worcestershire Regulatory Services

E Mail: dave.etheridge @worcsregservices.gov.uk

Tel: (01905) 822799


mailto:dave.etheridge@worcsregservices.gov.uk

Page 53 Agenda ltem 5

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL - DRIVER LICENSING POLICY
(REVISED WITH EFFECT 1°' DECEMBER 2017)

APPLICATION FOR A HACKNEY CARRIAGE AND/OR PRIVATE
HIRE VEHICLE DRIVER'’S LICENCE

The Driver’s Licence covers the driving of either/both Hackney Carriage and Private
Hire Vehicles and is valid for one year from the date of grant.

Criteria for Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Drivers:
e Applicants must be over 21 years of age;

e Applicants must hold a DVLA driver’s licence or an equivalent E.U. member
state driving licence;

e Applicants should have at least 2 years driving experience in the relevant
class of vehicle in the UK;

e Applicants must have good conversational English

e Applicants for new licences must be free from previous convictions and
cautions, other than for minor traffic offences.

e Applicants for any new driver licences must pass the Council’s essential skills
test.

e Applicants for new hackney carriage driver licences or dual hackney
carriage/private hire driver licences, must pass the Council’s knowledge test
before issue of a licence;

e Applicants for any new driver licences must pass a Driving Assessment test
with Worcestershire County Council before issue of a licence;

e Applicants for any new driver licences must undertake a disability awareness
training course conducted by Worcestershire County Council or demonstrate
to the Council’s satisfaction that they have undertaken equivalent disability
awareness training (e.g. Level 2 NVQ in Road Passenger Vehicle Driving)

e Applicants should be medically fit to drive hackney carriages or private hire
vehicles and shall give proof of their medical fithess by completing and
submitting a medical certificate carried out by a registered medical practitioner
authorised by this Council (to the Driver and Vehicle Licensing Agency’s
Group 2 medical standards). This medical will include a drugs test.

Age 21 — 45 Medical/drugs test on first application
Age 45 — 65 Medical/drugs test every five years
Age 65 plus Medical/drugs test every year



Page 54 Agenda ltem 5

Foreign Nationals and other persons who have lived abroad

If you are a foreign national and/or have lived abroad within the last twenty years for
a period of 16 weeks or more then you will be required to produce a document from
the relevant Government or Embassy of your country of origin, or last place of
residence if more appropriate, which provides a comprehensive criminal record.
This document must provide contact details for the Embassy or Government, in
order that Officers can validate its authenticity.

Any relevant offences will be put before the Council’s Licensing Committee so that
they can make an informed decision as to the suitability of the applicant.

Although the Council does not employ drivers who are the recipients of Hackney
Carriage and Private Hire Licences it is recommended, in the Department for
Transport Best Practice Guidance, to establish that an applicant has the right to work
as part of the determination of whether an applicant is a fit and proper’ person to
hold a licence. Consequently you will be required to prove your right to work in the
UK. This can be done by submitting a National Insurance Number and Customs and
Revenue Code numbers.

Those who do not meet the criteria

Under taxi licensing legislation, the Council has to ensure that anyone holding a
licence is a ‘fit and proper person’.

Where there is any doubt as to whether the applicant is a ‘fit and proper’ person, for
instance because the DBS or DVLA checks have shown the applicant has criminal or
motoring convictions, the Licensing Team may not have the authority to grant or
renew an application.

In these circumstances a report will be compiled by the Licensing Officer outlining
the details and presented to the Committee.

Applicants are entitled to attend the meeting to explain the circumstances of their
conviction (or other reason for referral) and speak in support of their application.
They are entitled to be accompanied by a representative (who may be either legally
qualified or a ‘lay’ representative).

In respect of criminal convictions, the Committee will have regard to the
supplemental guidelines relating to the relevance of convictions.



Page 55 Agenda ltem 5

Renewal of a Driver’s Licence

A licence holder must apply for renewal of their licence whilst the existing one is still
in force.

A reminder letter will usually be sent to the licence holder approximately 4-6 weeks
before the current licence expires. If the renewal application is received more than
14 days after the expiry of the previous licence it will be treated as a new application.

When renewing a licence the applicant must submit the completed renewal
application form, to the One Stop Shop, or by post to the address shown at the front
of this handbook, together with the following supporting documentation:

Application form for Disclosure and Barring Service check (where applicable);
Medical report/drugs test (where applicable);

DVLA licence showing current address;

DVLA mandate;

Licence fee;

Two passport sized photographs.

With effect from 1% July 2014 a driver licence holder applying to renew their licence
must have undertaken a disability awareness training course conducted by
Worcestershire County Council or demonstrate to the Council’s satisfaction that they
have undertaken equivalent disability awareness training (e.g. Level 2 NVQ in Road
Passenger Vehicle Driving).

With effect from 1 December 2017, holders of driver licences must
undertaken refresher training in disability awareness and must pass a Driving
Assessment test with Worcestershire County Council at least every three
years.

Applicants for renewal of licences must be free from new convictions since the date
of the grant of their last licence, other than minor traffic offences.

If the DBS or DVLA checks do not arrive prior to the expiry of the existing licence,
drivers will be permitted to carry on driving hackney carriage and private hire
vehicles, providing their application was received prior to the expiry date of the
existing licence.

If the DBS disclosure reveals a conviction/s not disclosed by the licence holder, then
the licence holder will be referred to the Committee for a decision as to whether their
licence should be suspended or revoked.

If a licence holder is going on an extended holiday, they may apply for a renewal
before they go, or give someone else written permission to renew their licence on
their behalf.



Page 56 Agenda ltem 5

Issue of Licence

An application will only be granted, and the licence issued, once the application has
been properly completed and approved.



Page 57 Agenda ltem 5

Improving Disabled People’s Access to Redditch Taxi Fleets

Survey Reponses

Redditch Borough Council is considering relaxing its policy on the licensing of
vehicles as hackney carriages so that instead of additional hackney carriages having
to be “brand new” wheelchair accessible vehicles, they can be wheelchair accessible
vehicles that are up to six years of age.

Please note that in this context a “wheelchair accessible vehicle” means a vehicle
capable of carrying a wheelchair user whilst they remain seated in their wheelchair.

Do you agree with this proposal?

Yes - 15 (68%) No - 7 (32%)

Other Comments Received in Relation to this Question

Although | agree that there should be more wheelchair accessible hackney carriages
in the Borough, | don't feel the quality of the vehicles should be compromised by
allowing vehicles to be upto six years old.

As long as they are we'll maintained regularly and spot checks done

Yes, as long as it is safe, and has been properly adapted - AND
CHECKED/approved etc.

who cares how old it is if its safe clean and usable!?

This will make it more affordable for drivers to purchase and license a wheelchair
accessible taxi

Otherwise the situation is restricted - it is necessary to encourage the greatest
possible number of taxis available

| believe that the vehicle does not have to be a brand new taxi, as long as it has
gone through all the stringent tests that RBC taxi licensing ask of all their taxis. Also
buying a wheelchair access vehicle brand new would be too expensive for most of
the taxi firms, which is one reason why we do not have many of them.

As long it is maintained and fit for purpose the age should not be restrictive

There is no substantial difference in use or safety of a WAV over the rest of the fleet.




Page 53 Agenda ltem 5

As long as the vehicle has regular services of the vehicle and ramps etc to ensure
that the vehicle is safe for use then | feel a taxi can be used up to 6 years old.

Access to services under the Equality Act 2010 should be for everyone and not just
for the able bodied.

Disabled people have a very limited social life — the lack of transport extends their
social exclusion

Disabled people should be given the same opportunities as their peers without
transport this is extremely difficult

With the services at the Alexander Hospital being moved to Worcester disabled
people are going to struggle to attend appointments due to mis matched bus
services and also the limitation of available positions for wheelchair users
Employment opportunity for disabled people are already limited with accessible
transport disabled people would be able to venture out of county

Accessible transport would increase freedom of independence which is often lacking
in the majority of disabled peoples lives

It makes good business sense and there is definatly a niche in the market to extend
taxi services considering how many disabled people there are within our county
The spending power of disabled people within the county would benefit hundreds of
business including the taxi provision themselves, if they had accessible transport.

| agree as it is giving more flexibility to disabled people with wheelchairs.

There are too many old bangers used as taxi/private hire. Many of these vehicles
have in excess of 300,000 miles and should not be used for this purpose only new
cars and buses should be allowed for this purpose. It would be a good idea to
restrict mileage on vehicles also operators should supply service details many of the
companies do not even service a vehicle until it breaks down.

Because we can buying cheaper 6 years old hackney taxi is cheaper so all the
drivers can buying. | cannot afford a new one.

Because buying a six year old hackney carriage is cheaper so all the drivers can
buying hackney taxi. | cannot afford a new one.

| cannot afford a brand new taxi with disabled access.

Because | am a dual badge taxi driver in Redditch but | cannot afford a brand new
hackney vehicle. | will buy a hackney vehicle if is 6 years old so it will help the
disabled customer to reduce the waiting time to get a disabled access vehicle.

What happened to those vehicles which were given out to people for this very
purpose. | think there were at least four licences. | also think that this is a private
hire matter unless there is a survey carried out on each taxi rank.




Page 59 Agenda ltem 5

The taxi trade is already overcrowded with licensed hackney and private hire
vehicles. How will you accommodate additional hackney carriages i.e. ranks/stands
and adaptations to existing ranks so they are wheelchair friendly. Have not seen any
evidence to back the Councils claim that more wheelchair access hackney carriages
are needed. For example no proof of any independent survey being done. The
Council has also not considered the fact that this will open the gateway for drivers
easily obtaining a hackney carriage licence in Redditch and using the loophole to go
and work in other Boroughs out of Redditch. There is no legislation to restrict this
practice to make sure all Redditch hackney carriage licences issued remain in the
Redditch Borough.

Refer to Redditch Taxi Association Letter

Too many taxis in Redditch, not enough demand for this type of vehicle. Cross-
border loophole will open up

There is no demand for any more. Before any policy change | would like to see a
report or an independent survey completed to back such changes. There are
already sufficient amount of wheelchair cars in Redditch this will produce more
overcrowding on existing ranks that are designed to accommodate such vehicles.




Page 60 Agenda ltem 5

Redditch Borough Council is considering amending it’s policy on the licensing
of drivers of hackney carriage and private hire vehicles to require all drivers to
undertake refresher training in driving standards and disability awareness
every three years.

Do you agree with this proposal?

Yes - 13 (59%) No - 9 (41%)

Other Comments Received in Relation to this Question

| see more and more hackney carriage/private hire licence holders driving to very
poor standards and with sub standard vehicles. Refresher training in driving
standards every 3 years would, hopefully, raise the standard of driving and impress
upon them the importance of having a well maintained and road worthy vehicle.

| have also been advised by wheelchair users that some companies within the
Borough do not use the required restraints when fixing their wheelchair in their
vehicles. Additional refresher training in disability awareness would promote a great
understanding of how to interact with disabled passengers and ensure their
wheelchairs are securely restrained.

| am also under the impression that a number of Redditch companies have
purchased wheelchair accessible vehicles but do not readily take wheelchair
passengers due to the additional time it takes to load and unload them. | believe they
have only purchased these specialist vehicles in order to take advantage of the
extended period they are allowed to keep the vehicles as licensed hackney
carriages, as opposed to standard non-wheelchair accessible vehicles.

Everyone's needs updated training regularly for health & safely reasons

Definitely must be compulsory. The standard of driving should be better, and the
driver should end up having a greater degree of empathy. One thing that should also
be seriously considered AND PROMOTED is that drivers of taxis who have passed
the advanced driving test - set by the Institute of Advanced Motorists - should be
officially recognised etc. And if all the registered drivers of a taxi firm have passed
the 1AM test then that taxi firm must get special recognition.

yes absolutely, most able bodied drivers have no clue about any kind of disability




Page 61 Agenda ltem 5

and some especially council licenced are racist and dangerous, and | have had
personal incidents with drivers who should not have been behind the wheel.

Over time everyone forgets what they learned on a course. Refreshers seem a very
good idea.

As long as it isn't too onerous

| believe that every taxi driver should have a refresher course as they get into bad
habits, and it does not hurt to remind them about the standards that are expected of
our drivers. As a disabled person who is ambulant and walks with crutches it is a lot
to be desired at the moment.

It is crucial to understand the needs of disabled passengers to complete their
journeys safely and securely

All professions require updated training. Training becomes less effective and
relevant over time.

Drivers need to be made aware of disabilities and what each disabled person may
need in regarding assistance in and onto/off the vehicle.

All clients must feel safe and secure when travelling on public transport. Without
training drivers would not know how to approach the disabled person and support
their needs.

Drivers must be aware of working dogs and the legislation assigned to carrying a
working dog such as those for visually impaired people and wheelchair users.

It makes good business sense to enhance customer satisfaction

Disabled people travel differently to able people i.e taking corners at the correct
speed, being helped to fit their seat belts, being clamped in correctly

The vulnerability of disabled people can expose them to areas of danger that they
themselves may not be aware of.

| agree as the Council is giving training to people to help with assistance to
wheelchair people

Many drivers in Redditch do not have full command of the English language this
should not be allowed.

All the drivers already pass the taxi test and are well trained.

All the drivers already pass the taxi test and are well trained.

Every driver is very well trained and already undertook the taxi test.

Most of the drivers already know about disability awareness. As | am a taxi driver for
more than 5 years.




Page 62 Agenda ltem 5

If the Council is willing to pay then yes, otherwise no. Simply Council Officers don’t
pay out of their own pockets for any of their training or courses. Charge new drivers
only.

| would like to see evidence that supports the need to make such amendments to
policy i.e. complaints etc. If anything considering the time a driver spends on the
road on a daily basis, driving skills, reflexes, judgement calls etc are much better and
natural than an average driver who drives to and from work. However if the Council
still considers this amendment, as | feel it is a gimmick to generate yet again more
finances from the taxi trade, | would agree only on the basis that there was no costs
involved. As for disability awareness the last time we completed such a course we
had to pay for it, again generating more revenue but did not receive any
documentation that such training was completed.

Refer to Redditch Taxi Association Letter.

Most of the drivers do a great job without extra training. New drivers must do extra
tests initially when applying. Where is my certificate from disability test?

No due to the fact drivers who are existing drivers have many years of experience
and are some of the best and experienced in the Borough. However they should
make more rigid and intense training for any new applicants as some of them should
not hold a hackney or private hire licence.




Page 63 Agenda ltem 5

Redditch Borough Council is considering amending its policy and conditions
for the licensing of hackney carriage and private hire vehicles to require
vehicle proprietors to display stickers in their vehicles that provide
information on how passengers can make complaints or pass on compliments.

Do you agree with this proposal?

Yes - 19 (90%) No - 2 (10%)

Other Comments Received in Relation to this Question

| think this would be very useful. However, | would question whether Redditch
Borough Council have sufficient manpower to deal with these due to the ongoing cut-
backs to staffing levels.

So the public can view the details clearly.

And ensure the sticker is LARGE and of an approved/standard design - with large
font, and it must be put in a prominent position etc.

because they treat you like its your fault when they have been rude or dangerouse
and you end up injured. and if you ring the office they say they don't know who
picked you up.

This will make it easier for the public to report issues to the council.

This is a basic requirement and avoids the person having to ask the driver if it is a
complaint.

This would help on both sides as if you have received exceptional treatment from a
taxi driver (not normal treatment which they should be doing) you can give a
compliment the same way as you can complain about a driver.

If the vehicle is licensed then there should be a complaint process and information
where you can make that complaint or compliment.

What is the point of compliments? What would you do with the compliments? If they
were used in anyway to influence or effect the outcome of enforcement you would be
in breach of existing legislation. The compliments aspect is concerning and sets a
negative president in taxi licensing law. This aspect is likely to be judicially reviewed
and is more about appeasing drivers than improving standards.

Saves the passenger the time and hassle of having to make phone calls to find out
who they need to really speak to when there is a problem.




Page 64 Agenda ltem 5

You can not access a service unless you know how to access it.

This allows passengers to understand a driver is following code of conduct set out to
him and they have information available to see where they can get in touch which
helps the communication between passengers and driver.

As | have said before, many proprietors have old transport cars and buses with very
high mileage and due to lack of English do not give a good service to customers.

Already there is a sticker with the taxi number displayed. We don’t mind.

Already there is a sticker with the taxi number displayed. We don’t mind if this is
changed.

Already there is a sticker with the taxi number displayed. We don’t mind if this is
changed.

Because there is already a vehicle plate number is stick in the inside of the
windscreen. And also we taxi driver always should wear badge so everybody can
read over identity and badge number.

Depending on size of stickers. Also private hire should have "pre-booked" stickers
like other towns and cities.

Because majority of customers if they have complaints or issues will either contact
the operator they booked the taxi directly or in serious issues contact the police or
Council anyway. However if the Council feel there is a need, why not alter the
licence plates and include a contact number like some Boroughs rather than waste
more money on stickers. However | strongly feel before actually implementing any
changes, the Council should set up an independant complaints line for drivers who
have issues with licensing i.e. badge renewals, suspensions, plate renewals and
enforcement issues.

Refer to Redditch Taxi Association Letter.

| agree but more staff is required - who will pay? Who will pay for stickers?
Recommend do it on red or green plates. Tell customers through newspapers on
how to complain.

Rather than display stickers on the dashboard, the information should be included on
the rear plates and on the interior licence sticker.




Page 65 Agenda ltem 5

Redditch Borough Council is considering publishing a list on their website of
all taxi owners / operators who can provide a vehicle that is capable of
carrying a passenger who remains seated in their wheelchair.

Do you agree with this proposal?

Yes - 21 (100%) No - 0 (0%)

Other Comments Received in Relation to this Question

| would welcome this. However, detail regarding whether they have split ramps and
high headroom would also be useful as different wheelchairs have different
transportation needs.

It will give people confidence and reassurance to know they can trust the
recommendations.

Obvious, and make it easy to find on the RBC website. [The search facility on the
RBC website isn't very good.]

helpful as you don't know who you can call unless you personally know a driver who
has a suitable car a list of companies who will put a chair in the boot without
complaint or extra charge would also help.

This will make it easier to know who to call.

Again this is an obvious thing to do with so much usage of the internet and in the
interests of providing a comprehensive service for users.

Yes as otherwise you have to phone round different taxi firms to see if they take
wheelchair access vehicles.

Usually you have to call each firm to see if they have a suitable vehicle and if it is
available.

It helps people access the appropriate service for them.

| have tried to look on the website for such information now that | have to use an
electric wheelchair and there is no information at all so far of which taxi companies
do provide wheelchair accessible taxis.

You can not access a service unless you know how to access it.

| agree to helping to work alongside people to be able to achieve a goal and having
vehicles available for wheelchair users so they can go shopping, visit family,




Page 66 Agenda ltem 5

appointments, etc at comfort and service.

Good idea.

It will be easier for the customers.

It will be easier for customers to book a disabled vehicle.

It will be easier for customers to book a disabled vehicle.

That will be easy for the disabled people to ring the right operator without wasting
their time.

No objections at all.

Good idea to make it fair change P/H policy where operators need to stop
discriminating on price. It will be good for customers to know who or how to book.




Page 67 Agenda ltem 5

Do you have any other proposals that you think the Council should consider to
improve access for disabled people to hackney carriage and private hire
services?

| think the Council should ensure that disabled people are aware of the small number
of wheelchair accessible vehicles that are available within the Borough and that
many of these vehicles are multi-purpose so can be used as standard hackney
carriages/private hire vehicles. This would help them understand that they are not as
freely available in Redditch as they are in cities such as Birmingham or London.
Unfortunately this results in wheelchair taxis need to be booked, in many cases, in
advance, to ensure that the correct vehicle arrives.

General point, like the City of Oxford taxi tariffs, plus many other local authorities, all
the taxi tariffs in Worcestershire must be in metric units, not the price per mile, the
tariff meter should be set to kilometres. The published price of fares to show £ /km.

list of companies with chair adapted vehicles. list of companies who will put a chair in
the boot, or carry service dogs without extra charge or moaning, list of companies
whose drivers are willing to help carry goods to the door for you if you really can't,
carry it a way to make sure you can complain if something happens and will be
listened to drivers and cars more regularly checked for standards set rules about
what they can charge so its not different with every driver as often happens.

make cars easier to identify AS taxi, the company | use are great they text you telling
you what car they sent, but its not always easy to identify car types in the dark at
night... or a car type you have never seen before...

The council could make it mandatory for all its taxis to be wheelchair accessible taxis
like they have in other towns around the country.

At the moment if a wheelchair disabled person requires a taxi, the taxi firms | have
consulted on say that 48 hours notice has to be given. This is not acceptable as |
feel that this is discrimination to the disabled person. How do you know if you might
need a taxi for an emergency and there is no other way of getting there!

Bring down the price. | have used the only taxi company | could find to go out when |
needed to. It cost me £24 for a return to my visit my sister who lives less than 3 miles
from me. This is something | can't afford being a single disabled parent on benefits.
Outrageous cost. In a normal taxi it would cost me £6 return to visit my sister and as
| can no longer use a normal taxi £24 is not what | am willing to pay so | haven't used
the service since and now | feel isolated and feel as though | will never be able to
visit family and friends again.

| think when it comes to wheelchair users it is very difficult for me to say how | am
going to know whats best for them as they are in a wheelchair permanently, working
to help towards to achieve that goal and having training as well sounds like it will




Page 63 Agenda ltem 5

help me to improve that service.

| do not understand how some drivers get a private hire licence when they cannot
speak English. It says in the manifesto that all drivers should have a good
understanding of English. Many do not.

Drivers who get dual badge council can offer to put the vehicle which is at least 6
years old (like Peugeot Partner) so then will be more disabled access vehicle will
come on the road which will improve service to provide a disabled access vehicle to
disabled people.

My proposal would be based on first hand knowledge of the taxi trade as | have been
a driver for over 12 years. Over this period of time | have never experienced an
issue with disability because literally all wheelchairs are foldable and customer is
able to get into a normal saloon car. | feel to improve wheelchair friendly access the
Council should consider making changes to how licences for private hire vehicles are
issued. For example make it compulsory for anyone wanting a private hire vehicle
licence will only be issued one if the car is a 6 year old wheelchair vehicle. And
change policy so they cannot charge extra for this service. As at the moment in the
last 24 months a lot of private hire licences have been issued both vehicle and driver
that could have potentially been wheelchair friendly. Also there is no policy or
enforcement in place to stop operators for charging extra for wheelchairs. Also give
the Dial-a-Ride contract to a taxi operator with the vehicles as they would do a better
and regular service.

Refer to Redditch Taxi Association Letter.

Restrict what private hire operators charge if wheelchair cars are used. Any other
guestions please contact Redditch Taxi Association.




Page 63 Agenda ltem 5

Redditch Taxi Association
65 Oakly Road

Redditch

B974EF

Dear Dave,

The RTA over the past few months have been speaking to the members regarding the consultation
on Improving Disabled Peoples Access to Redditch Taxi Fleets. The response has been overwhelming
from both Hackney and Private Hire Drivers.

The attached letter details on how the drivers feel about this consultation. Many drivers have not
received the consultation letter therefore we have included a list of the drivers who have raised
their concerns.

Regards

Redditch Taxi Association



Page 70 Agenda ltem 5

In response to the report that was issued by the Task Group on improving disabled people’s access
to Redditch taxi fleets, the Redditch Taxi Association (RTA) and its members have agreed that
changes are required but many taxi drivers have raised concerns on some of the recommendations
made in this report.

The following letter will highlight what the concerns are, and are willing to put some
recommendations forward to make sure that both the drivers and the disabled customer needs are
met in an amicable manner.

The divers have asked for an independent and more in-depth inquiry into what is being proposed
and would be very grateful if this is carried out before any decision is made.

Many taxi drivers in the borough have been working with the public for over three decades, many of
those drivers believe the demand for wheelchair accessible vehicles (WAVS) is already being met by
private operators. Those customers whom require a WAV generally pre-book their taxi for a return
journey at agreed times and price with their provider. Those that would come on to the taxi rank
usually have foldable wheelchairs and can easily sit in the car with reasonable assistance from the
driver.

Hackney members feel that this consultation is only targeted towards them. Redditch Borough
Council (RBC) Licensing has made the private hire licence a free for all. The drivers believe that many
of the issues and problems the customer faces are a result of licensing not following their own
guidelines in recruitment of drivers. One of the recommendations that operators improve driver
standards. From the offset when a driver is being issued a licence, the licensing team should follow
the requirements tick list. Rather than passing on the book to operators and drivers the licensing
team, employed to do this need to make sure standards are met.

The recommendation made by the Task Group to increase the number of licensed WAVS operating
in the borough by relaxing its policy of vehicles as hackney carriages has many implications on the
trade as a whole. From the research carried out we have found there are already too many hackney
carriages for what the Taxi Ranks can cater for, which has already resulted in over parking. Cross-
border working due to legal loopholes.

The ranks are not equipped for certain types of WAVS which will mean that the Ranks will have to
be made more user friendly. One problem we have found with the Bus station rank is that if a WAV
is parked in the middle of the rank and a customer requires this particular vehicle, there is no way of
getting around unless all vehicles are made to leave the rank.

The rank configurations would come at a cost which should be considered especially when the
current feeder rank situation is still being questioned and has not been sorted.

The report has not considered that by relaxing or changing the policy on the age may open a
gateway for drivers to obtain a hackney carriage licence in the borough and then use a legal
loophole to go and work cross- borders. There is no legislation to restrict this practice to make sure
all hackney carriage licensed vehicles remain in the borough.

Members have suggested that a change in policy for any new private hire licences should have a
compulsory requirement of WAV,



Page 71 Agenda Iltem 5

Changing the policy from allowing a brand new WAV to one that can be up to six years of age. This in
the report states that considerable savings can be made to the driver. These vehicles usually tend to
be high mileage thus requiring more maintenance for wear and tear, giving far less fuel economy
and some are adapted only to carry a single occupant alongside the wheelchair user. The side
loading black cab style vehicle even at six years of age is an expensive option as these tend to be ex
taxis in other counties and also come with high mileage and usually are coming to the end of their
life span.

The current WAV operators in the borough have a modern and adequate fleet of vehicles, who cater
for all types of wheelchairs. The supply for WAVS surpasses the demand for the borough, as many
operators have to rely on regular contracts to make these vehicles financially viable.

The report states that “a disabled customer was unable to get home after their shopping trip” which
prompted this short and fast review. A question drivers are asking is how did this customer get
there?, why is it when a taxi is required it is expected there and then and if you book a taxi operated
and funded by the council you have to wait upto a week?

When the customer did require a WAV they were told one was not available for a period of time
due to prior commitments. Yet Dial a Ride which was praised in the report, a service funded by the
council will make customers book in advance for the journey required. A service that only operates
limited hours and days. Some members have suggested that the dial a ride contract be given to a
local operator, at a subsidised cost which may lead to a more regular and cost effective service.

Redditch Borough Councils consideration of requiring hackney carriage drivers to undertake
refresher training in driving standards and disability awareness every three years has unanimously
been rejected by the drivers. The amount of private hire licences being issued has seen a decrease
in driver earnings over the last few years. Who will cover the cost of such training and courses? Our
proposal would be, any new drivers joining the taxi trade Hackney Carriage or Private Hire must
undertake a DSA test as well as a disability awareness test before their license is issued. Majority of
Redditch drivers have been working in the trade helping people from all groups without any
problems or major concerns.

The consideration of stickers in taxis for passengers to make complaints and compliments is a good
idea. Our recommendation would be to have this information on the plates inside and outside of the
car, this will save on the cost of having the stickers made. Drivers are also concerned whether there
will be a specialist department with more employees? And if so how will these costs be covered?

When a complaint is made, there must be sufficient and reasonable evidence of any complaints
made before the driver has been summoned to the committee.

Drivers are in agreement that a disabled passenger must be charged the same as all customers.
Changes to policy are required so that this can be achieved and be fair to all. The drivers have made
it clear that any licensed driver, who refuses to carry a passenger with a disability without
reasonable exemptions, should be given penalties or even a ban.



Page 72 Agenda ltem 5

The recommendation of advertising WAVS through the internet is a good idea and would make it
easier for the user to access this service. It will also save on costs when upgrades are needed,
compared to other types of media.

In conclusion the drivers believe some changes are required. An independent inquiry must be carried
out before a decision is made. Changes to private hire policy must be looked into, which may include
the fairness in price for disabled passengers. The improvements that can be made in initial
recruitment of drivers by the licensing team.

We would be very grateful that the council or committee do not issue any WAV a licence on what is
being suggested in the report during the consultation period or until a final decision is made
regarding this matter.

Any issues in this letter you may want to discuss with the RTA please do not hesitate in contacting
us.

Regards

Redditch Taxi Association



Page 73

RTA

(Redditch Taxi Association)

Agenda Iltem 5

Representing hackney carriage and private hire drivers for Redditch borough council

Members list:

NAME BADGE | BADGE | LICENCE | LICENCE | CONTACT
<@ | NUM | TYPE | NUM TYPE
s dia 2 £ | Hoesy (7 H &

S AKTAC.| D03 | dackie| G sy C
M NALAZ i SO \HANES | 197 HeC ]
AT ool | LU [HAGREY (90 Li-c
T-WADEE | ISS  lfacieiey | 225 t£-C
N ) DoAL 1L vle
M Bstiad 5% [Uaene) Sk M
AL AlHTeA 260 | tnelcnt| 143 H-C
&SHAHZAO dSeo L Sq H
sl Ml 375 Ha/é;z?}{ A iH#-C

il Bawai) Ly 3 | Hackney] U] Y. cC
SABIR. | ey iac 94 | Y-
M oAz A Mk el | ave
S5:ALLAE | 1o Batney| 220 | il
M-S - L] 24S [ HRERE | | o€
R.Nown2| |2 [Hackeey 14 | Y-cC.
. AeeR [0 | PRasac] A

A Mammeel) Jes | Mgl He [Prd
Re sy gep PP H | Q24 | Pris
AAam)R|1c) x| 5 | Mk
Mo\ [ 21 [dwee| LY [dHee
S-Suad [ 1A [Hacnt £® AR\
A SLE” |69 e | & ale

W TR [37%0 Haeyw | 177 HAcie
o Avngey | J6E  |HAck | 169 | HAck
Mafon | 2 ke 118 Lijfle ik
S Noeyr | 2o [Hack | 3% "p-C
N > HuYHA| L pe bhack | 2 h<

A At moed| ) o 11 Iis | ho PRine

RV (€4



Page 74

RTA

(Redditch Taxi Association)

Agenda Iltem 5

Representing hackney carriage and private hire drivers for Redditch borough council

4

Members list:
NAME BADGE | BADGE | LICENCE | LICENCE | CONTACT
NUM |TYPE | NUM TYPE
M.LASHR | 214 | UAckwsy| )4 HACKVE)
AFTAR Aumen &35 |Haciwer| | Hacgws)
KAA Munss| 1os Hacensl | 145 HAc
V= om 1828 ?’jé!? e 122 | lac
' 1y o A iy )% Hard
Snoais Al 121 chmrﬁ_ 20% chmﬁ
AP | | BH | Ry %
MnlaseR | QoD |\ | & K e
Lﬁéfiﬂm- 1 H-c | 23 Hc.
mag - 1352 |H-c |lg3 H-c
boneel ) 108y |H-c (204 | e/
e ern 285" [Py |3S Py
azgipt 1275 (e |8 | H ¢
Vo, el Y9 | H-C | iG0 +- c
Nfrecd tc | T4 ¢ iqg H
hai.d na |17 [ +i 15¢ P-4
Wsom naz, 4 258 |Hpry (95 Pey
B> iloind 373 Dt | 26 |




KIiA
Page 75
(Redditch Taxi Association)

Agenda Iltem 5

Representing hackney carriage and private hire drivers for Redditch borough council

Members list:

NAME BADGE | BADGE | LICENCE | LICENCE | CONTACT
‘ NUM NUM TYPE
N - Al ng AL Moy 71 | W e/
M- AADEEE 323 | p. 124y | Acrint
R . Retmm] 43T |HecKney 1200 | Hickof ey
B ledeon] BGL | ekl K3 Moo ey
rzpkat| 65 o |t ¥
hoan Qo | 4] P e | Pu
Camiaw pumd s | Hreic 1% Lo |
Redafsay | s | huak £5 | dual
| AMELZ M 2.8 HAcK L 78| Hackni
R0 o) S . 57 | oIy
AP hia | 2its fay F.o
05 el Meleel G20 (R¢ | #if
Py oy 2F 2 | Diisg | SN Iy AL
Liizaz Soad 191 ‘ ISE Vot
farek fapre) 13 | A i
i tHassas] Led 2 H &% £t
— — 3
el IS NE-C |63 [p-C




Page 76

RVA

(Redditch Taxi Association)

Agenda Iltem 5

Representing hackney carriage and private hire drivers for Redditch borough council

Members list:
NAME BADGE | BADGE | LICENCE | LICENCE | CONTACT
NUM |TYPE |NUM TYPE
1, Gulzareh S ity | 130 | t1.c
Segiclna 1252 |[He [/8O H e
S\w&\&%\w p 25} | W 1% W<
Mopeloy  |4E7 | HEC 2of =
0] 363 |sonckeesp LT O | 44.C.
T EXT e | ide  |"pi-c
smw a\\ﬁ% 27, TrHe | (o9 H-C
Tanwer Awd 252 | HC o He
Mo ikRpia | HoS  |PRwATE | 169 PC
M-Suamis - | s |HYopivy G HC.
TALRMmsAn| brd | DBEL | jad KL
) Letnfsel | 2 | Deat - | uy He
P K#MEAM L4 [Dugl | 93 AL
A 1% [ Do \ 21 »-C
62 Y |HSc 6 Hc
Ll 153 A a3 |
AQSHAN | 232 | i R .71 o
M-S Yyla | D 203 | 4o
. A 27— H-c. | 3 | H.c.
7-Boishpal | 398 | ML LA Moy
(51 E-Pabpped IFF | e | 193 | B¢
KomBary | 163 | PRUA| Jo f  |Fhluelt
<afiids T4 e LA Ml




Page 77

RTA

(Redditch Taxi Association)

Agenda Iltem 5

Representing hackney carriage and private hire drivers for Redditch borough council

Memberslxstmﬂ_. w% - -
NAME BASGE | BADGE | LICENCE | LICENCE | CONTACT
NUM |TYPE [NUM | TYPE '
1- Q. KkMaN| §3 | sicensy JFR|HACKNE
: 13|P-hive | 29%p | O e’
R. yAWAY| 64 |HAtkd HBCKNE
m-kwoy | b5 |Prps| Bl |P-mKE
M- kAN | 38 | Pakel 498 |P-HIHE
Yoosur | Mg | Pt 3 |\P-HIRE |
B pisten| 1D | fonle | 289 | Pk
TRAAT Gull 16E | P-WP2| 4393 | P.wele
Fsottpgand 447 |duan | 70 PuAL
m.S RAJA | 180 [Dud | A3 DAL
| Masezan - BPE " | PHREl 562 | PHE
oy, - PRE| 451 | P-HiKE |,

N

p-HKE ],




Page 78 Agenda Iltem 5

RTA

(Redditch Taxi Association)

Representing hackney carriage and private hire drivers for Redditch borough council

Members list:

NAME BADGE | BADGE | LICENCE | LICENCE | CONTACT
NUM TYPE NUM TIPE

M- Rirz | 199 |Hokol 1273 |[H-c
iAo/ | 13 Honty 471 | Hc

0 p.ipegiel AFb | Hadkor | (1] e
2P R _12%4 | @V £C | ¥-C
T thsmi | 280 [usdioci| 13’ Y. C
LMARMeg 27 SRCYNEY  S) H.¢
M- IRk Wl dHACkNr b L | H- ¢
Lo Dt e D |itdaed] 1297 | H. ¢
afigtlel £ ;;r’_‘;;g’dﬁ 3= | ke

Vel = [Macusd W | M
SRR TATICS B 1 I A A M
M -TJaz | |2 H-e| 29 L.c.
N-FAC9la | & e | 212 tec

T Il Hoo | plply | gec
P orrk 28 |\ b | 28.| Yo
ATeeAL [ 17 | w.c bz Hee
M.Zgfe 8OV S | H-< A F<
OdIED [f0g | j.c | 1D I
EIMMED | fy | .8 |12 H-5

7

£ /@%( ’njf'q qb‘-[" fl_; fa 1
O-Lhligu| t6e e | 173
Thintor | 525 Ll.C | Cay AT

b e pig & . <
] (k) Mool o1 | M
Noeps¥] 1228 | He )1 L
M.BMALIK 29T [ He | jg3 | H.C
i gt ] 327 | W 137 <
FARpyens | 144 H-¢ 161 e
Cilenzo s L5 | S om '

T uzons {M’m\@ &3 DudxL oz | H e



Page 79 Agenda Item 6

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

LICENSING
COMMITTEE 5" March 2018

UPDATE ON THE IMPLEMENTATION OF THE RECOMMENDATIONS
FROM THE IMPROVING DISABLED PEOPLE’S ACCESS TO REDDITCH
TAXI FLEET TASK GROUP

Relevant Portfolio Holder Councillor Joe Baker

Portfolio Holder Consulted Yes

Relevant Head of Service Simon Wilkes - Head of
Worcestershire Regulatory Services

Wards Affected All Wards

Ward Councillor Consulted N/A

Non-Key Decision

1. SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS

In July 2016 the Overview and Scrutiny Committee’s Improving
Disabled People’s Access to Redditch Taxi Fleet Task Group
presented a report to the Licensing Committee. The report contained a
number of recommendations that the Licensing Committee resolved to
approve these recommendations. This report provides an update on
the progress made to date with regards to the implementation of these
recommendations.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

That Members note the contents of the report.

3. KEY ISSUES

Financial Implications

3.1 None.

Legal Implications

3.2  Asthis is an update report and Members are only being asked to note
the contents of the report, there are no legal implications at this time.



Page 80 Agenda Item 6

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

LICENSING
COMMITTEE 5" March 2018

Service / Operational Implications

3.3 InJuly 2016 a report was presented to the Licensing Committee by the
Overview and Scrutiny Board, Improving Disabled People’s Access to
Redditch Taxi Fleet Task Group. The report contained a number of
recommendations aimed at improving access for disabled people in
Redditch to licensed Hackney Carriage and Private Hire vehicles.

3.4  The Licensing Committee resolved to approve the recommendations of
the Task Group, subject to the carrying out of suitable consultation on
those recommendations that required the Council to amend its
Hackney Carriage and Private Hire licensing policies in order to
implement.

3.5 The recommendations contained in the Task Group’s report were:

1) The Hackney Carriage Vehicle Licensing Policy and the Private
Hire Vehicle Licensing Policy should be amended:

(a) to allow applications for new hackney carriages to be made for
vehicles that are less than six years old, meet European M1
safety standards and have facilities for carrying a disabled
person in a wheelchair within the vehicle. (This relates to the
Hackney Carriage Vehicle Licensing Policy only); and

(b) to require drivers to display stickers in their vehicles that provide
information about how to report complaints;

2) The Driver Licence Policy — Application for a Hackney Carriage and
/ or Private Hire Vehicle Driver’'s Licence — should be amended to
require that refresher training should be provided on driving
standards and disability awareness to taxi drivers every three years;

3) There should be a media campaign to guide disabled people and
taxi drivers when travelling by taxi about their rights and
responsibilities;

4) WRS should publish a list of drivers who currently operate licensed
wheelchair accessible vehicles on the WRS and Redditch Borough
Council websites in a similar format to Brighton and Hove City
Council and Eden District Council;

5) WRS should undertake a review of the conditions attached to taxi
operators’ licences; and



Page 81 Agenda Item 6

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

LICENSING
COMMITTEE 5" March 2018

6) The Licensing Committee should review the effectiveness of the
disability awareness training provided to taxi drivers.

3.6  This report provides updates on the progress made to date with
regards to the implementation of these recommendations.

Recommendation 1(a)

3.7 Following a lengthy consultation process, the Licensing Committee
resolved to approve an amended Hackney Carriage Vehicle Licensing
Policy which allows applications for new hackney carriages to be made
for vehicles that are less than six years old, meet European M1 safety
standards and have facilities for carrying a disabled person in a
wheelchair within the vehicle. The amended policy took effect on 1°
December 2017.

3.8  Atthe time of preparing this report two additional wheelchair accessible
Hackney Carriage Vehicles have become licensed since the amended
policy took effect on 1% December 2017.

Recommendation 1(b)

3.9  The Licensing Committee resolved to make an amendment to this
recommendation so that the stickers displayed in vehicles provided
information on how to report compliments as well as complaints.

3.10 Following research into the procurement of suitable stickers and
following discussion with the licensed trade, it has been decided that
the information could be displayed on the small internal licence plate
that is displayed on all licensed vehicles. This removes the need to
display additional signage or stickers inside the vehicles.

3.11 Discussions have taken place with the company that supplies the
materials used to make the vehicle licence plates and an amended
design has been agreed. The new style internal licence plates will
start to be phased in shortly once stocks of the existing internal licence
plate templates have been used up.

Recommendation 2

3.12 Following a lengthy consultation process, the Licensing Committee
resolved to approve an amended Hackney Carriage and Private Hire
Driver Licensing Policy that included this requirement. The amended
policy took effect on 1% December 2017.



Page 82 Agenda Item 6

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

LICENSING
COMMITTEE 5" March 2018

3.13 Since the amended policy took effect some Members have been
contacted by licensed drivers concerned by the new requirements in
relation to driver training. Furthermore, at a Taxi and Private Hire
Liaison Forum held on 31 January 2018, over 100 licensed drivers
attended and strongly expressed similar concerns.

3.14 In light of the strength of feeling that was clear to those elected
Members present at the Taxi and Private Hire Liaison Forum, the
Chairman of the Licensing Committee agreed that Members would give
the matter further consideration at the next Licensing Committee.

Recommendation 3

3.15 The content and strategy for a media campaign were initially discussed
with the Communications Team. However the Government’s
announcement about the implementation of sections 165 — 167 of the
Equality Act 2010 meant that some of the key messages that needed
to be delivered by the media campaign had to be revisited and the
launch of the media campaign was postponed.

3.16 In the meantime, all licensed drivers have been made aware of the
implementation of sections 165 — 167 of the Equality Act 2010 and
reminded of their responsibilities towards all passengers with
disabilities. This information was included in one of the regular
newsletters sent to licence holders during 2017.

3.17 Itis hoped that a media campaign to raise awareness amongst the
public can be undertaken this Spring. The campaign would include
reference to the implications of sections 165 — 167 of the Equality Act
2010 as well as highlighting how any issues can be reported.

Recommendation 4

3.18 Since the Task Group presented its report, the Government has
implemented sections 165 — 167 of the Equality Act 2010.

3.19 As aresult of this change to the law, drivers of designated wheelchair
accessible taxi and private hire vehicles are now obliged to:

« transport wheelchair users in their wheelchair
e provide passengers in wheelchairs with appropriate assistance
« charge wheelchair users the same as non-wheelchair users



Page 83 Agenda Item 6

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

LICENSING
COMMITTEE 5" March 2018

3.20 The new powers only apply in those areas where the licensing
authority has decided to maintain a list of designated vehicles under
section 167 of the Equality Act 2010, and where the driver is driving a
vehicle included on the list of designated vehicles maintained by the
licensing authority.

3.21 Redditch Borough Council has decided to maintain such a list and this
was published with effect from 1% December 2017. The list is part of
the Council’s publically accessible register of licensed vehicles that is
hosted on the WRS website and can also be accessed via the
Redditch Borough Council website.

3.22 The list shows all the vehicles licensed by the Council and identifies
those that have been designated as meeting the Council’s accessibility
requirements for wheelchair users. The holders of the vehicle licences
are also named on the list.

Recommendation 5

3.23 Licensing officers have internally reviewed the conditions attached to
private hire operator licences and have compared them to the
conditions attached by other Council’s across Worcestershire. The
conditions attached by the Council were found to be broadly consistent
with those attached to licences elsewhere in the County.

3.24 Worcestershire Regulatory Services are currently participating in a
project with colleagues from Councils across the West Midlands region
to try and harmonise the conditions attached to Hackney Carriage and
Private Hire vehicle, driver and operator licences in order to create
some regional standards and improve consistency. This is in part a
response to the increase in Hackney Carriage and Private Hire
vehicles that are working “cross-border” in different Councils’ areas.

3.25 Once this project has progressed further, the Licensing Committee may
be asked to approve amended conditions for all Hackney Carriage and
Private Hire licences, including those issued to operators.

Recommendation 6

3.26 Officers have examined the content of the disability awareness training
and consider it to be fit for purpose and appropriate.



Page 84 Agenda Item 6

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

LICENSING
COMMITTEE 5" March 2018

3.27 It is difficult to monitor how effective the training is as, in common with
all training delivered, there are no guarantees that the person who has
been trained will choose to put their learning into practice.

3.28 One indication of the effectiveness or otherwise of the training would
be the number of complaints received about the service offered by
licensed drivers to passengers with disabilities.

3.29 The number of complaints from disabled passengers about the service
they have received from licensed drivers remains low, which may
suggest that the disability awareness training is effective in most cases.

3.30 However the clearer information on how to make a complaint about a
licensed vehicle or its driver is not yet being displayed inside licensed
vehicles (see 3.11 above) and so the situation does need to be kept
under review to see if there is an increase in complaints once the new
style internal licence plates are phased in.

4. RISK MANAGEMENT

4.1 None

5. APPENDICES

None

AUTHOR OF REPORT

Name: Dave Etheridge — Senior Practitioner (Licensing)
Worcestershire Regulatory Services

E Mail: dave.etheridge@worcsregservices.gov.uk

Tel: (01905) 822799


mailto:dave.etheridge@worcsregservices.gov.uk

Page 85 Agenda Item 7

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

LICENSING
COMMITTEE 5™ March 2018

LICENSING COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 2017/18

5" March 2018

Gambling Act 2005 — Approval for consultation on revised Statement of
Principles

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver Licensing Policy — Further
consideration of requirement for all licensed drivers to undertake disability
awareness training and driving standards assessments every three years

Update on implementation of recommendations from “Improving Disabled
People’s Access to Redditch Taxi Fleet” Task Group

To Be Allocated To Suitable Available Dates in 2018/2019

Draft Revised Street Trading Policy — Consideration of Responses

Licensing Act 2003 — Approval for consultation on revised Statement of
Licensing Policy

Gambling Act 2005 — Consideration of responses to consultation on revised
Statement of Principles

Licensing Act 2003 — Consideration of responses to consultation on revised
Statement of Licensing Policy

Review of Policy on the Relevance of Convictions for Hackney Carriage and
Private Hire Drivers

Reform of Animal Activities Licensing Legislation — Information Report



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Gambling Act 2005 - Review of Statement of Principles
	Appendix 1 - Draft Revised SoP (2019-2022)

	5 Further consideration of recent amendments to Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver Licensing Policy
	Appendix 1 - HC-PH Driver Policy
	Appendix 2 - Survey Results
	Appendix 3 - RTA Submission

	6 Update on implementation of recommendations from "Improving Disabled People's Access to Redditch Taxi Fleet" Task Group
	7 Work Programme

